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Independent Auditors' Report

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component units, each
major fund, and the general fund budgetary comparison, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Raton, New Mexico (City) as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2008, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. We have also audited the financial statements of each of
the City’s nonmajor funds, including the budgetary comparisons, and the budgetary
comparisons of the major enterprise funds presented as supplementary information in
the accompanying combining and individual fund statements as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, as listed in the table of contents. These financtal statements are
the responsibility of the management of the City. Our responsibility 1s to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

Except as discussed in the following paragraph, we conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
1ssued by the Compirolier General of the United States. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of matenal misstatement.  An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disciosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
OpPINIONS.

The records related to capital assets of the governmental activities of the City and the
discretely presented component unit, Raton Public Service Company, are incomplete,
and we were not able to satisfy ourselves by other procedures as to the accuracy of the
valuation of such capital assets.
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State of New Mexico

City of Raton and

Mr. Hector H. Ralderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

In our opinion, except for the effects, if any, of inadequate information related to
capital assets for the governmental activities, as described in the preceding paragraph,
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities of the City as of June 30, 2008, and
the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

in addition, in our opinion, except for the effects, if any, of inadequate information
related to capital assets for the discretely presented component unit Raton Public
Service Company, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, major funds, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2008, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budget
comparison of the general fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion,
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of each nonmajor fund of the City, as of June 30, 2008, and the
respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition,
the budget statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects the
budgetary comparisons of the major capital project funds, the nonmajor governmental
funds and the enterprise funds for the year ended June 30, 2008 in conformity with the
budgetary basis more fully described in Note 1 which is a comprehensive basis of
accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

As described in Note 15 to the financtal statements, the City restated fund balances
and net assets as of July 1, 2007 for its’ governmental activifies.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated November 29, 2008 on our consideration of the City's internal controi over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
1s to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control over financial reporting and
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State of New Mexico

City of Raton and

Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or compliance. That report is an wtegral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered 1n assessing the results of our audit.

For the year ended June 30, 2008, the City has not presented the Management's
Discussion and Analysis that the Governmental Accounting Standards Board has
determined 1s necessary to supplement, although not required to be part of, the basic
financial statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements and on the
combining and individual fund financial statements and budgetary comparisons. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards 1s presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and 1s not a
required part of the basic financial statements. In addition, the schedule of changes in
assets and liabilities for the agency fund is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and 1s not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied by us in the audit of the financial
statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

/%m Ao Lt/

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 29, 2008



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2608

Prmary Goveniment Component Uhils
Govemnmenta) Business-lype Raton Rulon
Activilies Activities Total Public Service  Housing Authority
ASSETS
Cash wnl temporary mvestiments 5 4,394,030 4,324,380 8,718,410 500,000 307,998
Leeeivables, net ol allowance [or
uncolleclibles 1,883,227 333,948 2,237,173 449 292 50,282
Tnventory - 60,139 60,130 772324 14,844
Note receivable, cuurent porton - 13,772 13,772 - -
Prepaid expenses - - - 7.077 3,450
RRestmicted cush and mvesunents - - - 4,200,402 39,634
Loan acqlusition cosls, nci 10,500 - 10,500 - -
Nole receivable, long lenu - 140,192 140,192 - -
Capital assets, not depreciated 1,167,203 - 1,167,263 13,841 388,208
Capila] assets, net of accumuluted depreciation 13,398.597 21,656,952 35,055,549 5.241,772 1,870,758
Total asscts ) 20,853,617 26,549,403 47,403,020 11,274,705 2,895,204
LIABILITIES
Cash overdrall 5 460,282 - 460,282 - -
Accounls pavable 198412 28,216 426,628 388,527 44,369
Accried liabililies 121,377 38,076 159,453 57,826 38,691
[ntergovernmental Lability - - - 22,418 -
Deposits - 115,743 115,743 252,638 -
Deferred revenues 5,619 5,619 - -
Compensaled absences 372,741 201,014 373,755 87,390 -
Long-term lhabilities, due 1 one year 363,771 - 363.771 111,313 -
Long-teym liabilities. due i more than one year 3,909.11¢ 3,495,015 7,404,123 1,983,776 -
Tuotal liabitities ) 5831312 § 3,878,004 & 9,709,376 2,903,390 103.060
NET ASSETS
[nvested in capital assels, net ol related debi k) 10,092,979 19,197,437 28,290,416 2,160,522 2,238,966
Restricted for
Special projects 1,257.066 - 1,257,066 - -
Capital projects 2,036,034 - 2,036,934 . -
Debt service 698,710 - 698,710 - -
Unrestricted 936,616 3,473,902 4,410,518 3.210.293 533,178
Total net asscts § 15,022,305 22,671,339 37,693,644 8,370,815 2,762,144

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 20008

Other
General Goveriumental
Fund Funds Tatal
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and temporary investiments 3 852,017 3,542,013 4,394 030
Accounts receivable - nel 584,663 1,298,564 1,883,227
Due from other funds - -
Loan acquisition costs - net - 10,500 10,500
Total assets 3 1,436,680 4,851,077 0,287,757
Crrent Liabilities
Cash overdraft 5 - 460,282 460,282
Accounts payable 8,077 390,335 398,412
Due to other funds - - -
Accrued expenses 119,244 2,131 121,377
Deferred revenue - 5,618 5,619
Total liabilities 127,323 858,367 055,690
FUND BALANCE
Fund balance
Reserved
Debrt service - 698710 698,710
Unreserved, reported in
General fund 1,309,357 - 1,309,357
Special revenue funds - 1,257,066 1,257,066
Capital project funds - 2,036,934 2,036,934
Total tund balance 1,309,357 3,992,710 5,302,067
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 1,436,680 4,851,077 6,287,757

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Total fund balance governmental funds 3 5,302,067
Capital assets used i govermmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported i the funds 14,565,860

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and pavable i the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (4,845,622)

Net assets governumental activities ) 15,022,305

See Noites 1o Financial Statements.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 390, 2008

Revenues
Property luxes
Franchise laxes
Gross reccipls laxes
Lodgers laxes
Motor fuel faxes
Motor vehicle taxes
Crgarelle luxes
State sources
Grants
Fees & fines
Licenses and pernuts
Charges for services
Inleresl

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Cusrent
General govermmnent
Public safety
Culture and recreation
Highways and streets

Capiial onllay

Debt service - principal

Debt service - inlerest

Total capenditures

Escess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing scurces (uses)
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing

sources (uses)

Nel change in {und balance

Fund halance. beginning of year

as onginally reported

Restatement

Fund balance, beginning of year, restated

Fund hatanee, end of year

Other
General Governmenlal
Fund Funds Total
$ 396,447 - 596,447
115,427 - 115,427
3,204,608 600,447 3,805,055
- 423,996 423,996
- 278,902 274,992
17,486 - 17,486
15,467 (5.638) 9,820
248,605 3,174,036 3,422.661
- 914,897 014,897
68,020 11,535 79,555
24,718 - 24,718
430,027 6,462 436,489
43814 135,006 183,820
7329 375,745 383,074
4,776,948 5,915,498 10,692,446
1,167,020 911.14] 2,078,161
2,908,768 75408 2,934,176
197,396 43,625 24).221
592,526 - 592,526
163,549 4,078,349 4,243,398
238.630 258,630
- 306,994 306,994
5431.459 5,674,147 10,705,606
(254,511) 241,351 (13,160)
165,383 1,870,262 2,035,645
(415,443) (1,384,574) (1,800,017)
(250,060) 485,688 235628
(304,571) 727,039 222 468
1.813,928 3.119,307 4,933,233
- 146364 146,364
1.813,928 3,263,671 5,079,599
5 1,309,337 3,992,710 5.302.067

See Noies 10 Financial Statements



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCLES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TOTHE STATENMENT QF ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2008

Amounts reported for govermental activities m the Statement of Net Assets are different because:

Nel changes v fund balunces ofal governmental tunds $ 222,408
Governmental [unds report capital outlay as expendilures. However, in the Statement of
Aclivilies, the ¢ost of those assels is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported ax depreciation expense.
Capital outlay included as expenses in the govermenial
funds 3,309,237
Deprecution expense not included in the governmental tunds (928.682)

Govermmental lunds do net record the expense necessary 10 adjust compensated absences,
staterments of activities records the changes as program expenditure (28,163)

The issuance of long-term debt (e g. bonds, lenses) provides current finuncial resources
10 governmental funds, while the repayment ol the principal of long-tenm debt consumes
the current financial resources of povernimental funds. In the current year, debt
proceeds exceeded vrincipal payments by (343,239)

Change in net assets governmental activities

)

2,231,601

See Notes to Financial Statements.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NUN-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

GENERAL FUND
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues

Taxes

Stale sourges

Fines

Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Interesi
Miscellancous

Totai revenues

Expenditures
Current
General governument
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Capital cuilay

Total expenditures

Transfers m
Transfers out

Total transfers
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Changes i accounts receivable
Changes in accounts payable
Changes in accrued liabilities

GAAP change in fund balance

See Notes 1o Financial Statements.

Variance
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unlavorable)
$ 4,020,826 3,906,628 3,906,629
196,800 206,435 206,435 -
48,600 53,255 53,255
31,810 24718 24,718 -
475,800 524,948 524,950 2
48,000 48,814 48,814 -
2,000 7,328 7.328 -
4,823,836 4,772,126 4772129 3
1,250,071 1,220,715 1,163,647 57.068
2,985,234 2,976,290 2,890,803 85,487
680,542 627,800 581.596 46,204
200,825 196,572 196,571 1
142,508 138,764 188,763 1
5.259,180 5.210.141 5,021,380 188,761
- 165,383 165,383 -
(73.887) (378,141) (375.003) 1,138
{73,887) (212,758) (209.620) 3,138
(509.231) (650,773) (458,871) {191.902)
509,231
5 -
(35.621)
15.121
(25,200)
(504.571)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON
BALANCE SHEET
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30,2008

ASSETS
Ciurenl Assets
Cush and temporary investments
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable, current portion
Inventory
Total current assets

L.ong-Ternn Assets

Notes receivable, long-term portion

Capital assets, net

Total fong-term assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Liabilities
Cwrrent Liabilities
Accounts payable
Customer deposils
Accrued compensated absences
Revenue bonds, curent portion
Accrued payroll

Total current liabilities

Long-Tenm Liabilities
Closure and post-closwre care
Revenue bonds

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, nel of related debt

Net assets (deficit), unrestricted

Total net assets (deficit)

Total liabilities and
net assets

See Notes to Financial Staiements.

Water
and
Sewer Sanitation Total
$ 4,077,442 246,938 4324 380
353,948 333,948
13,772 - 13,772
60,159 ; 60,159
4,505,321 246,938 4,752,259
140,192 - 140,192
21,244,493 412,459 21,656,952
21,384,685 412,450 21,797,144
§ 25,890,006 659,397 26,549,403
$ 28,216 - 28,216
115,743 - 115,743
154,563 46,449 201,014
25,823 12,253 38,076
324,347 58,702 383,049
- 1,035,500 1,035,500
2,459,515 - 2,459,515
2459515 1,035,500 3,495,015
2,783,862 1,094,202 3,878,064
18,784,978 412,459 19,197,437
4321,166 (847264) 34739002
23,100,144 (434,805) 22,671,339
$ 25,890,000 659,397 26,549,403




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES

EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSE'L'S
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 30, 2008

Operating Revenues
Charges {or services
Taxes
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues
Operating Expenses
Franchuse fee
Fihter plant
Sewer plant
Construction snd maintenance
Sohd waste collection
General and administrative
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating meorne (loss)
Non-Operating Revenues {Expenses)
Interest income

Interest charges

Total non-operating revenues
and expenses

Net mcome (loss)

Transfers oul

Net assels, beginning of vear
Net assets, end of year

See Noies io Financial Staiements.

Waler
and
Sewer Sanilation Total
b 1,854,585 811,935 2,666,520
1,391,772 - 1,391,772
240,596 4,193 244 789
3,486,953 816,128 4,303,081
127,263 - 127,263
235,264 - 233,264
391,135 - 361,135
646,315 - 646,315
- 976,502 876,902
369,612 - 369,612
612,427 75,877 688,304
2,382,016 1,032,779 3,434,795
1,104,937 (236,651) 868,286
199,762 11,399 211,164
(127,422) - (127,422)
72,340 11,399 83,739
1,177,277 {225,252) 852,025
(235,628) - (235.628)
22,164,495  (209,553) 21,954,942

$ 23,106,144

{434,805) 22,671,339
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ENTERPRISE FUNDS

June 34, 2008

Operaling Acuvities
Cash recetved from cusiomers
Cash received [or taxes
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash paid for payroll and benefiis
Other
Net cash provided by
operating activities

Capual and Related Financing Activities
Purchase ol property
Principal paid on debt
Interest paid on debt
Transfers to governmental funds for capital projects
Nef cash used by capital and
relafed financing activities

Investing Activities
Interest received on investments
Proceeds from principal of note receivable
Net cash provided by
investing activities

Net decrease in cash
Cash at begining of year
Cash at end of vear

Reconciliation of operating income o
net cash provided by operating activities

Operating meome (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss}
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation
Fost closure costs
Accounts receivable
Due from RPS
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits

Net cash pravided by
operating activities

See Notes to Financial Statemenis.

Water
and Solid
Sewer Wasle Total
$ 1,868,181 890,322 2,758,503
1,391,772 - 1,391,772
(1,037,209 (221,861) (1,259,070)
(804,169) {482,219) (1,286,388)
240,596 - 240,596
1,659,171 186,242 1,845,413
(1,460,814) {221,607y (3,682,421)
(181,258) - (181,258)
(127,422) - (127,422)
(235,628) - (235,628)
{2,005,122) (221,607)  (2,226,729)
199,762 11,399 211,161
13,282 - 13,282
213,044 11,399 224.443
(132,907) (23,966) (156,873)
4,210,349 270,904 4,481,253
$  4,077.442 246,938 4,324 380
§ 1,104,937 (236,651) 868,286
612,427 75,877 688,304
- 281,500 281,500
(21,658) 67,097 45,439
13,679 - 13,679
26,529 - 26,529
(110,135} - {110,135)
11,817 (1,581) 10,236
21,575 - 21,575
S5 1,659,171 186,242 1,845,413




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Deposits held in trust for others
Total Liabilities

See Notes to Financial Statemenis.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Raton, New Mexico (City) was incorporated April 28, 1891. The City
operates under a Comimission Manager form of Government and provides the following
services as authorized by its charter: public safety (fire, emergency service, ambulance),
police, highways and streets, fow-income housing, public utilities (water, sewer, electric,
sanifation), health and social services, culture and recreation, educaticn, public
improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

The City 1s a body politic and corporate under the name and form of government selected
by its qualified electors. The City may:

»  Sue or be sued;

e Enter into coniracts and leases;

» Acquire and hold property, both real and persona!

¢ Have a common seal which may be altered at pleasure;

¢ Exercise such other privileges that are incident to corporations of like character or
degree that are not inconsistent with the laws of New Mexico;

» Protect generally the property of its municipality and its inhabitants;
» Preserve peace and order within the municipality; and

» Establish rates for services provided by municipal utilities and revenue producing
projects, including amounfs, which the govermning body determines to be
reasonable in the operation of similar facilities.

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, (b) organizations
for which the primary govemment is financially accountable, and (c) other organizations
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government is
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. The Raton Water Board is considered a departiment of the City
and 1s included in the primary government financial staiements.

In evaluating how to define the City for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component
unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the criteria for including a potential
component unit within the reporting entity. The first criterion for including potential
component unit within the reporting entity is the governing body's ability to exercise
oversight responsibility. The most significant manifestation of this ability 1s financial
interdependency. Other manifestations of the ability to exercise oversight responsibility
iclude, but are not limited to, the selection of governing authority, the designation of
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

management, the ability to significantly influence operations, and accountability for fiscal
matters. A second cnterion used in evaluating potential component units is the scope of
public service. Application of this criferion mvolves considering whether the activity
benefits of the City and/or its citizens, or whether the activity 1s conducted within the
geographic boundaries of the City and is generally available to its citizens. A third
criterion used to evaluate potential component units for inclusion or exclusion from the
reporting entity is the existence of special financing retationships, regardless of whether
the City is able to exercise oversight responsibilities. Based upon the application of these
criteria, the following are the component units included in defining the City's reporting
enfity:

+ Housing Authority of the City of Raton
s Raton Public Service Company

The physical assets of the Raton Public Service Utility System are the property of the
City of Raton. The management of the Utility System rests with the Raton Public Service
Company (Company), a New Mexico Corporation, pursuant to a franchise contract,
Ordinance No. 731, amended by Ordinance No. 942, of the City of Raton. All of the
Company's financing is provided by the City through the issuance of municipal revenue
bonds. Various bond reserves are established by the terms of the City's bond ordinances.
The Company is managed by a board of five directors, three of whom are elected by the
Trustees and two of whom are members of the City Commission.

Raton Public Service Company 1ssues a separate, publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may
be obtained by writing to: Raton Public Service Company, Raton, NM 87740.

The Housing Authority of the City of Raton i1s governed by a five member Commission,
which is appointed by the City Commissioners. The Annual Contribution Coniracts
(authorizing agreements for funding between the City's Housing Authority and the US
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)) are signed by the City
Commissioners. For fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the Housing Authority of the City
of Raton 1ssued a separate, publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by
writing to: Housing Authority of the City of Raton, PO Box 297, Raton, NM 87740.

18



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The government-wide financial statements (i.c., the Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Changes in Net Assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary
activities of the City. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed
from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities,
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that
are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, enterprise funds, and
fiduciary funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the fiduciary fund
financial statements. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses are recorded
when a liability 1s incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-
lieu of taxes and other governmental transactions that represent services provided.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported
for the various functions concerned.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,
1989, generally are followed in the government-wide statements to the extent that those
standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board. Govemments also have the option of following subsequent private-
sector gmdance for their business-type activities, subject to this same limitation. The
government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for
goods, services, or privileges provided, which are generally utility charges, business
permits and licenses 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Intermnally dedicated resources are reported
as general revenues vather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include
all taxes.

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with proprietary fund’s principle ongoing operations.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it 1s the
government’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
are recorded.

Governmental financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered
to be available when they are collectible within the current period. For this purpose, the
City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the cwrent fiscal period. Expenditures, generally are recorded when a lLiability is
incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded
only when payment is made.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are property taxes, gross receipts taxes, state shared
taxes, investment income and charges for services. In accordance with GASB Statement
33, estimated revenue that 1s not available s recorded as both accounts receivable and
deferred revenue. Gross receipts and other intergovernmental taxes are not recorded as
the amounts are not estimable. Grant revenues are recognized as revenues when the
related costs are incurred. All other revenues are recognized when they are received and
are not susceptible to accrual, because they are usually not measurable until payment is
actually received.

The City reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenues
arise when a potential revenue does not meet both the “measurable”™ and “available”
criteria f{or recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when resources
are received by the City before it has legal claim to them, as when grant monies are
received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In a subsequent period when
both revenue recognition criteria are met or when the City has a legal claim to the
resources, the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet
and revenue 1s recognized.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The City reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund 1s the City’s primary operating fund. Tt accounts for all the financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The City records the amount of grant expenditures in excess of receipts as a receivable
from the funding source. Revenue for expenditure driven grants is recognized when the
qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been
met.

Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement
focus (all assets and all liabifities associated with the operation of these funds are
included on the balance sheet) and use the accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time
liabilities are incurred. The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in
accounting and reporting for its proprietary operations. Fund equity (i.e., net of total
assets) 1s segregated into contributed capital and retained earnings components.
Proprietary fund-type operating statements present increases (e.g., revenues) and
decreases {¢.g., expenses) in net total assets.

Cash and Temporary Investments.  Amounts reflected as "cash and temporary
investment” on the Statement of Net Assets include amounts on hand and in demand
deposits as well as short-term mvestments with a maturity date within three months of the
date acquired by the City. Investments, primarily certificates of deposit with financial
nstitutions, are stated at cost or amortized cost, which approximates its market value.

The City is authorized under the provisions of Chapter 6, Article 10, paragraph 10,

NMSA 1978 annotated, to deposit its money in banks, savings and loan associations
and/or credit unions whose accounts are msured by an agency of the United States.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

All money not immediatety necessary for public use of the City may be invested in:

a. Bonds or negotiable securities of the Unifed States, the state or any county,
municipality or town which has a taxable valuation of real property for the
last preceding year of at least one million dollars ($1,000,000) and has not
defaulted in the payment of any interest or sinking fund obligation or failed
to meet any bonds at maturity at any time within five years last preceding;
or

b. Securities that are issued by the Untied States govemment or by its agencies
or instrumentalities and that are either direct obhgations of the United States
or are backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government or
agencies guaranteed by the United States govermument; or in contracts with
bank, savings and loan associations or credit unions for the present purchase
and resale at a specified tume in the future of specific securities at specified
prices at a price differential representing the interest income to be camed by
the imvestor. The contract shall be shown on the books of the financial
institution as being the property of the investor and the designation shall be
contemporaneous with the investment. The contract shall be fully secured
by obligations of the United States having a market value of at least one
hundred two percent (102%) of the contract. The collateral required for
investment in the contracts provided in this subsection shall be shown on the
books of the financial institution as being the property of the investor and
the designation shall be conternporaneous with the investment.

If the City 1s unable to receive payment on public money at the rate of interest set forth
by the State Board of Finance (which is no less than one hundred percent (100%) of the
asked price on the United States treasury bills of the same maturity on the day of the
deposit) from financial institutions within the geographic boundaries of the governmental
unit, the City may invest its money as provided under Section 6-10-10.1 NMSA 1978
with the New Mexico State Treasurer's investment pool. As of June 30, 2008, the City
had no funds invested in the State Treasurer’s investment pool.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. The City has determined that receivables are not
100% collectible. To determine the collectibility and related allowance for doubtful
accounts, management takes into consideration the aging of receivables, past history,
amnesty programs, and the ability to lien property.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The City has reviewed its customer base for concentrations of credit risk and has
determined that no individual customer or group of customers engaged in similar
activities represent a material concentration of credit risk to the City.

Property taxes are levied and collected by Colfax County. The County remits to the City
amounts collected for the applicable portion of the property taxes in the month following
the date of receipt. The City recognizes property taxes as revenue on the modified
accrual basis. Property taxes are levied as of January 1% on property values assessed on
the same date. The tax levy is payable in two installments, November 10" and April 10™.
The property taxes are considered delinquent and subject to lien, penalty, and interest, 30
days after the date on which they are due.

Inventory.  Inventory is valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventory in the
enterprise funds consists of meters, pipe, gauges, etc. used to maintain and improve the
sysiems. The cost i1s recorded as an expenditure at the time individual items are
purchased.

Capital Assets.  Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported In
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than 35,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Such assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materialty extend assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as construction in progress as they are constructed and are
depreciated as the project 1s completed. Such assets, including infrastructure, have higher
limits that must be met before they are capitalized. Software is included as part of the
cost of equipment. Interest incurred on debt outstanding during the construction phase of
capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the
assets constructed.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated
useful lives:

Building 40 years
Land improvements 20 years
Furniture, fixtures, & equipment 10 years
Vehicles 7 years
Mapping 20 years
Alrport improvements 15 years

The lives (in years) used for depreciation purposes for the two component units are as
follows:

Housing Authority  Raton Public
Of the City of Raton  Service Co.

Building and structures, hard costs 33 25 -50
Site and building improvements 15 10-20
Equipment and vehicles 3-5 3-10

Accrued Compensated Absences. For business-type activities vested vacation leave is
recorded in the fund financial statements. For governmental activities, amounts of vested
or accumulated vacation leave are not expected to be liguidated with expendable
available financial resources are reported in the entity-wide financial statements. In
accordance with the provisions of Statement No. 16 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability has been
recognized for sick pay as the city does not provide for payment upon termination of
employment and does not provide for payment or exchange in the future. In the past, the
General Fund was used to liquidate compensated absences.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Fund Equity. Reserves represent those portions of fund equily not available for
appropriation or expenditure or legally segregated for a specific future use. Designated
fund balances represent tentative plans for the future use of financial resources. Portions
of the fund balances have been reserved for subsequent vear's expenditures. The
reservation represents the amount of cash appropriated in the subsequent year's budget.
Also, a portion of the fund balances is reserved for noncurrent accounts and notes
receivable to indicate that the net receivable amounts are not "available spendable
resources”.

Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounling
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Loan Acquisition Costs. Loan acquisition costs are being written off over the life of the
loan on a straight-line basis. At June 30, 2008, the loan acquisition costs shown on
Staternent of Net Assets are net of $ 10,500 1n amortization.

Joint Powers Agreement. RPS, The City of Raton and ARPA have entered into joint
powers agreement to jointly finance a Raton Generation Project (Project) and the
ownership and operation thereof. ARPA and the City of Raton will finance the Project
on a fifty-fifty shared basis. ARPA shall own the Project facilities and be responsible for
their protection. Raton's share of the Project cost shall be considered an equity
contribution to ARPA of which it is a member and carried on ARPA's books and
financial records as equity assigned to Raton. RPS shall operate and maintain the Project
upon acceptance in commercial service.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 2.

LEGAL COMPLIANCE — BUDGETS

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements.

1. Prior to June 1, the City submits a proposed budget to the Local Government
Division of the Department of Finance and Administration. The City
Commission has approved the budget submitted after presentation by the City
Manager. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means
of financing them.

2. The Local Government Division in relation to the City shall:

a.

qa

Examine each proposed budget, and on or before July 1 of each year
approve and certify to the City an operating budget for use pending approval
of a final budget.

Hold public hearings on proposed budgets.

Make such corrections, revisions, and amendments to proposed budgets as
may be necessary to meet the requirements of law.

Certtfy a final budget for the City prior to the first Monday in September of
each year. Such budgets, when approved, shall be binding upon all taxing
officials of the State.

Upon the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration,
authorize the transfer of funds from one budget item to another budget item
when such transfer 1s required or an emergency condition exists mexiting
such fransfer and such transfer 1s not prohibited by law. In case of an
emergency necessitating the expenditure for an item or items not provided
for in the budget, upon approval of the Secretary of Finance and
Administration, the budget may be revised to authorize such expenditures.

With written approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration and
the Attorney General, increase the total budget of the City in the event the
City undertakes an activity, service, project, or construction program which
was adopted and approved and which activity, service, project, or
construction program will produce sufficient revenue to cover the increase
in the budget, or if the City has surplus funds on hand which are not
necessary fo meet the expenditures provided for in the original budget with
which to cover such increase in the budget.

Supervise the disbursement of funds to the end that expenditures will not be
made 1n excess of budgeted items or for items not budgeted, and that there
will not be illegal expenditures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 2.

3.

NOTE 3.

Cash and

LEGAL COMPLIANCE - BUDGETS (CONTINUED)

h. With the approval of the Secretary of Finance and Administration, make
rules and regulations relating to budgets, records, reports, handling and
disbursement of public funds, or in any manner relating to the financial
affairs of the City.

The City Manager 1s authorized to transfer budgeted amounts between
departments within any fund: however, any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Commussion and the
Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and Adminisiration
(DFA). Unexpended budget appropriations lapse at year-end.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device
during the year for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service
Funds, and Capital Projects Funds.

Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, Debi Service and Capital Projects
funds are adopted on a basis inconsistent with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Budgets are prepared using
the cash basis of accounting. Budgetary comparisons for the various funds in
this report are on this non-GAAP budgetary basis.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as legally amended by the City
and DFA. Individual amendments were not matenal in relation to the original
budgets.

The Level of expenditures, which may not legally exceed the budget, is at the
fund level as provided by state law.

Encumbrances lapse at year-end and are not reported in the budgets or financial
statements.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

investments held by the City include cash on deposit with financial institutions

and certificates of deposit.

Custodial Credir Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure,
the govermment deposits may not be returned to it. Deposits are secured by both Federal
deposttory insurance and collateral pledged in City’s name. Under New Mexico law, all
deposits with financial institutions must be collateralized in an amount not less than 50%

(102% fo
values of

1 ovemnight repurchase agreement deposits) of the uninsured balance. Market
all cash and deposits approximate the cost of those assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
As of June 30, 2008, the City’s deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

Insured $ 301,967

Uninsured and collateralized with securities held
in financial institutions name 4,804,839
Uninsured and uncollateralized 3612473
$ 8719279

The following schedule shows deposits and investments for the primary government as of
June 30, 2008:

Account Maturity  June 30, 2008 Reccenciling  June 30, 2008
Bank Naime Type Date Bank Items Book
International Bank
Operating Checking N/A 85,000 - 85,000
Special investment Checking N/A 603,907 (237,342) 366,565
Pooled special revenue Checking N/A 25,000 - 25,000
Special revenue Checking N/A 4497266 (45,048) 404,218
Pooled capital projects Checking N/A 36,601 (23,781) 12,820
GRT Swim/Rec. Ctr. Checking N/A 368,549 13,838 382,387
Enterprise/Solid Waste Checking N/A 10,000 - 10,000
Enterprise/Sohd Waste Checking N/A 195,454 41,484 236,938
Water/SGRT Checking N/A 98,558 - 98,558
Water Operating Checking N/A 199,166 (195,445) 3,721
Water Meter Deposit  Checking N/A 83,118 (3,957) 79,161
Water Capital Improv. Checking N/A 300,646 - 300,646
Water Bond Retirement Checking N/A 38,103 - 38,103
Water Int. and Sinking Checking N/A 336 - 336
Waste Water Treatment Checking N/A 37,384 - 37,384
Waste Water Treatment Checking N/A 101,439 - 101,439
Pooled Trust Checking N/A 253 (253) -
Payroll Clearing Checking N/A 3,043 (3,043) -
Municipal Court Checking N/A 4,621 295 4,916
Municipal Court Checking N/A 2,776 500 3,276
Environmental GRT Cert. of Dep.  12/26/08 200,000 - 200,000
Eavironmental GRT Cert. of Dep  12/29/08 200,000 - 200,000
Pocl/Rec. Cert. of Dep  12/26/08 238,000 - 238,000
Pool/Rec. Cert. of Dep  12/29/08 275,000 - 275,000
General) Fund Cert. of Dep  12/26/08 100,000 - 100,000
Water Cert of Dep  09/23/08 887,844 - 887,844
Water Cert of Dep  09/12/08 768,695 - 768,695
Water Certof Dep  07/17/08 287,720 - 287.720
Water Cert of Dep  12/07/08 145258 - 145258
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NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Account Maturity  June 30, 2008 Reconciling  June 30, 2008
Bank Name Type Date Bank ltems Book
Water Cert. Of Dep. 12/12/08  $ 218,908 - 218,908
Bank of America
Water Bond Reserve  Checking N/A 980 - 980
Supplemental GRT Checking N/A 987 - 987
First National Bank of NM
General Fund Cert. of Dep 9/4/08 75,000 - 75,000
General fund Cert. Of Dep.  12/3/08 75,000 - 75,000
(General Fund Cert. Of Dep.  12/4/08 75,000 - 75,000
General Fund Cert, Of Dep.  9/12/08 75,000 - 75,000
Library Building Cert. Of Dep.  1/22/09 80,000 - 80,000
Library Building Cert. Of Dep.  7/22/08 149,700 - 149,700
Library Building Cert. of Dep.  9/10/08 103,160 - 103,160
Pool/Rec Cert. of Dep. 9/2/08 200,000 - 200,000
Pool/Rec Cert. Of Dep.  12/5/08 100,000 - 100,000
Pooi/Rec Cert. Of Dep.  7/20/08 25,000 - 25,000
Water Cert. of Dep.  11/21/08 658,558 - 658,558
Water Cert. Of Dep.  12/19/08 587,967 587,967
New Mexico Finance Authority
Fire Equipment Loan  Trust Account N/A 26,272 - 26,272
Loader Trust Account N/A 2,249 - 2,249
Welcome Center Trust Account N/A 11,952 - 11,952
Street Improvements  Trust Account N/A 99,837 - 99,837
Street Imprv. Reserve  Trust Account N/A 100,174 - 100,174
Welcome Ctr. Reserve  Trust Account N/A 50,454 - 50,454
Fire Equipment Reserve Trust Account N/A 3,242 - 3,242
Recreation Center Trust Account N/A 44,760 - 44,760
Recreation Center Trust Account N/A 209.342 - 209,342
Total cash and temporary investments $8.719.279 (452 752} 8,266,527
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30,2008

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City places no limit on the amount the City may
imvest in any one institution. Individual deposits by institution are indicated below.

The following schedules pertain to the primary governmert:

International Bank of Raton, NM
Demand deposits
Time deposits

Less FDIC insurance
Demand deposits
Time deposits

Uninsured deposits

Total required collateralization

Collateralization held by Federal Reserve Bank, Denver
FHLB due 12-10-10 (3133X DTA9), $
FHLB due 11-13-09 (3133MUGP4),
FHLB due 10-14-08 (3133XDJG7),
FHLB due 6-13-14 (3133XKTV7),
FHOR due 9-17-10 (3133X4LX7),

Overcollateralized

Bank of America
Demand deposits
Less FDIC coverage

Uninsured deposits
Collateralization required

Trust Service for New Mexico Finance Authority
Trust accounts invested with the New Mexico Authority
collateralized by the State of New Mexico

First National Bank of New Mexico
Time deposits

Less FDIC insurance
Uninsured deposits

Collateralization required

30

Bank
Balance

2,643,218

3.321.427

5,964,645

(100,000)
(100.000)

S 5764.644
S 2.882322

5 3.725.000

3 842.678
5 1,967
(1,967)

X
$ -
5 548,282
$ 2,204,385
(100.000)
s 2.104385

A

1,052,193



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Collateralization held by Federal Home Loan Bank, Dallas

FNMA, Pool #254583, matures 12/01/2009,

CUSIP 31371KXLO 3 24,603
FHLB Fixed Rate Note, matures 8/26/2010,

CUSIP 3133XCXVO 26,029
FNMA ARM-Pool #670702, matures 11/1/2032,

CUSIP 31391 MDE7 29,099
FHLB Fixed Rate Note, matures 6/30/2009,

CUSIP 31339X7Z56 239,837
FHLB Fixed Rate Note, matures 2/22/2018,

CUSIP 3133PFRO 178,629
TORRANCE ETC CNTYS NM MUN SD, matures 7/1/2015

CUSIP 891400JS3 156,348
RIO RANCHO NM PUB SCH DIST, matures 8/1/2010

CUSIP 767171EHO 236,290
FNMA ARM — Pool #654324, matures 10/1/2032,

CUSIP 31390R4H3 12,388
FNMA ARM —- Pool #729128, matures 11/1/2033,

CUSIP 31402HAS0 27,768
ROOSEVELT CNTY, NM Gross Receipts, matures 6/1/2017,

CUSIP 776461AL9 25,508
CHAVEZ CNTY ,NM, matures 8/1/2011,

CUSIP 162634BF5 67,429
ROY NM SCH DIST NO 003, matures 10/1/2015,

CUSIP 780040886 15,236
ROY NM SCH DIST NO 003, matures 10/1/2016,

CUSIP 780040BC4 15,167
ROOSEVELT CNTY, NM Gross Receipts, matures 6/1/2017,

CUSIP 776461 A1L9 25,508

1,079,839
Owvercollateralized 3 27.644

Information conceming deposits and investments, including collateral requirements, of
the City's component units is found in the component unit's separately issued financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES, NET

The fund receivables of the City of Raton at June 30, 2008, and the reiated allowance for

doubtful accounts was as follows:

(General Fund
(Gross receipt taxes
Franchise taxes
Other taxes
Grant recetvable
Municipal Court fines
Ambulance services

Special Revenue Funds
Fire Grants
Due from the Federal Govermment
Due from State Forestry
Recreation
State shared taxes
Lodger's Tax
Local taxes
Corrections
Fines
Environmental GRT
Local taxes
Region IV Narcotics
Due from federal government

Debt Service Funds
Pavement Assessments
Assessiments

32

Allowance for

Doubtful Net

Receivables Accounts Receivables
$ 289,705 - 289,705
104,991 - 104,991
9,028 - 0.028
49,670 - 49 670
282,269 (258,915) 23354
153.402 (45.487) 107,915
889,065 {304.402) 584.663
90,451 90,451
38,655 38,655
134 - 134
45,405 - 45,405
553 - 553
7,516 - 7,516
1,438 - 1.438
184,152 184.152
67.245 (60,521 6,724




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2008

NOTE 4. RECEIVABLE, NET (CONTINUED)

Capital Projects Funds
Swimming Pool/Rec. Center
Gross Receipt taxes
Parks
4% Capitat Iimprovements
Gross Receipt taxes
Water
Grants Receivable
Historic Building
Grants Recelvable
Alrport
Due from federal government
Street Improvements
Grants Receivable
(Gas Tax

Enterprise Funds
Water and Sewer
[nterest
Local taxes
Billed accounts

Component Units
Housing Authority
Tenant accounts receivable
Grants recetvable
Interest

Raton Public Service
Customer receivables
Other

33

$ 15,085 - 15,085
733,568 - 733,568
13,069 - 13,069
10,900 - 10,900
90,000 90,000
40,576 40,576
102,226 - 102,226
11,994 - 11.994
11.994 - 11,994
Allowance for
Doubtful Net
Receivables Accounts Receivables
3 13,698 - 13,698
124,217 - 124,217
233,890 {17.857) 216.033
§ 371.805 {17.857) 353.948
$ 4,798 - 4,798
40,456 - 40,456
5.028 - 5,028
3 50,282 - 50,282
$ 571,172 (142,144} 429 028
20,264 - 20,264
3 591,436 (142 144 449292




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 5. NOTE RECEIVABLE, NRA

By agreements between the City and the National Rifle Association (NRA) Special
Contribution Fund {Trust), the City extended a water Hine to trust lands, which have been
developed mto the National Rifle Association National Shooting and Conservation
Center (Whittington Center), and agreed to supply water at stipulated rates. These
agreements were dated September 5, 1973, May 10, 1977, and August 27, 1979,
respectively. The Trust agreed to pay 49.19% of all costs relating to the extension of the
line, up to a total of $368,958, over a period of 38 years.

Payments of principal are made annually, and payments of interest, which accrue at 5%,
are made semiannually. Total amount due on this note at June 30, 2007 1s a follows:

Current portion b 13,772
Long-term portion 140,192
§ 153964
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 6. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

The following schedule details the transfers that were made between the various funds
(GAAP Basis) during the year ended June 30, 2008:

Transfers
Out

General Fund

To Airport CP 5 53,268

To Recreation 12,000

To Region IV Gran( 4,862

To EMS Fund 22,431

To Parks Capital Project 13,800

To MAP Capital Project 165,383

To Historic Buildings 3,259

To Fire Fund 100,000
Fire Fund

To Fire Equaipment Debt Service 8,937
Lodgers Tax 3%

To Lodgers” Tax 2% 208,599
Lodgers Tax 2%

To Welcome Center DS 46,958
Environmental Gross Receipts Tax

To Equipment Loader DS 17,604
Street Improvements

To Street Improvement DS 106,533

To MAP Project Fund 95,234
One-quarter Percent Capital Project Fund

To Parks Capital Project 150,000

To Pool and Recreation Center 83,753

To Montoya Property Fun 3,019

To NMFA Recreation Center DS 200,992
Insurance Reserve

To One-quarter Percent Capital Project 78,942
Convention Center

To Lodgers’ Tax 2% 19,144
Swiumn Pool/Recreation Center Fund

To One-quarter Percent Capifal Project 183,753
Map Capital Projects

To General Fund 165,383
Water Capital Project

To One-quarter Percent Capital Project 9,723

Total § 1,759,577
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 6. INTERFUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Transfers are made when revenues are recorded m one fund, for ease of tracking, and the
expenditure in a separate fund.

Additionally, the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund transferred $234,599 to the Waste
Water Treatment Plant Capital Project Fund n the City’s govermmental type funds. The
transfers represent expenditures on the capital project that are funded through the
operations of the Water and Sewer Enferprise Fund.

As of June 30, 2008 the General Fund had a due from Fire Protection Fund of $40,440.
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June 30, 2008

NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2008 1s as follows:

Primary Government

Governmental-Type Activities

Non-Depreciable Assets:
Artwork
Land
Construction in progress
Total Non-Depreciable Assets

Depreciable Assets:
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Improvements
Vehicles
Total Depreciable Assets

Total Governmental Assets

Accumulated Depreciation
Buildings
Furniture and Equipment
Improvements
Vehicles

Total Accumulated
Depreciation

Net Governmental Assets

Balance Deletions/ Balance at
July 1,2007  Additions Transfers June 30, 2008
$ 127,250 - - 127,250
530,725 58,000 - 588,725
4,868,279 713,352 (5.130.343) 451288
5,526,254 771,352 (5,130,343) 1,167,263
4,429,477 - 5,130,343 9,559,820
1,961,210 443,540 - 2,404,750
5,012,413 1,754,089 - 6,766,502
2.584.468 340,256 - 2.924.724
13.987.568 2.537.885 - 21.655.796
19.513.822 3.309,237 22.823.059
(2,138,207) (107,915) - (2,246,122)
(1,042.821) (212,457) - (1,255,278)
(2,813,048) (364,946) (3,177,994}
(1,334,441) (243.364) (1.577,805)
(7,328,517} (928.682) - (8.257.199)
512,185,305 2,380,555 - 14 .565.860
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NOTE 7.

Business-Type Activities

CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Balance at

Balance at

July 1, 2007  Additions Deletions  June 30, 2008
Non-Depreciable Assets:

Land § 2884201 177,622 - 3.061,823
Total Non-Depreciable Assets 2.884.20 177.622 - 3,061,823
Depreciable Assets:

Buildings 199,614 1,091 - 200,705

Furniture and Equipment 1,338,852 215,048 - 1,553,900

Infrastructure 24,678,080 1,109,253 - 25,787,333

Vehicles 901,709 140,088 - 1,041,797

Improvements 17,331 25317 42,648

Total Depreciable Assets 27 135,586 1,490,797 - 31,688.206
Total Business-Type Assets 30.019,787 1.668.419 - 31.688.206
Accumulated Depreciation

Buildings (99,557) (5,063) (104,620)

Furniture and Equipment (942,737) (130,538) - (1,073,275)

Infrastructure (7,485,128) (509,335) (7,994,463)

Vehicles (816,485) (40,674) - (857,159)

Improvements (13,044) (2.694) - (15.738)
Total Accumulated

Depreciation {9.356.951)  (688.304) - (10,045.255)
Net Business-Type Assets $ 20,662,836 980,115 - 21,642,951
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Component Units
Raton Public Service

Balance at

Balance at

July 1,2007  Additions Deletions  June 30, 2008
Non-depreciable fand g 13,841 - - 13,841
Depreciable
[ntangible asset 2,240,057 - - 2,240,057
Buildings and
improvements 11,719,144 - - 11,179,144
Equipment, furniture
and [ixtures 1,436,403 67,828 - 1,504,231
Franchise 17,000 - - 17.000
Total depreciable 14,872,604 67,828 - 14,940,432
Accumulated depreciation (9.448.248)  (250,412) - (9.698,660)
Net depreciable 5.424.356 (182.584) - 5,241,772
Total capital assets 5 5.438.197 (182,584] - 5,255,613

RPS and ARPA have entered into a memorandum of understanding whereby RPS and
ARPA financed the construction of a power generation facility on a fifty-fifty share basis.
ARPA shall own the building and 1s responsible for its operation. In the event the ARPA
1s dissolved, the facility will be transferred to the City of Raton. Previously, RPS’s
portion of this facility was reported as an investment in ARPA. However, during 2007
this amount was reclassified as an intangible asset as shown above and will be
depreciated over the estimated useful life of the project facilities of 35 vears.

During the curent year a physical inventory of capital assets was completed at or near
year end by an outside firm. However, RPS discovered that there were errors i the detail
listing from the physical inventory. The effects on the financial statements resulting from
this error are not reasonably determinable.
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NOTE 7. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Raton Public Housing

Balance at Balance at
July 1,2007  Additions Deletions  June 30, 2008
Capital assets not depreciated:

Land $ 253,436 - - 253,430
Construction in progress 741.124 210.841 (563.757) 388,208
Total capital assets
not depreciated 994.560 210,841 (563,757 641,644
Capital assets, depreciated:
Buildings 0,078,148 563,757 - 6,641,905
Furniture, equipment and
machinery - dwellings 102,215 12,700 - 114,915
Furniture, equipment and
machinery - administration 204,994 7,592 - 212,586
Leasehold improvements 937,586 4,800 - 942,386
7,322,943 25,092 - 7,911,792
Accumulated depreciation {6,097.862) (196.608) - (6,294,470
Total capital assets,
depreciated 1,225.082 235.933 (563.757) 8,553.436
Total capital assets $ 2219641 39.325 (563.757) 2,258,966

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the government as follows:

General Government

General govemment 3 370,473
Public safety 232,171
Culture and recreation 116,085
Highways and streets 208,953
Total $ 928,682

Business-Type activities

Water works 612,427
Sanitation 75,877
Total 5 688.304
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds

The City has the capacity to issue general obligation bonds to provide funds for the
acquisition and/or construction of major capital projects, but as of June 30, 2008 no

general obligation bonds had been issued.

Revenue Bonds

The City also has the capacity and has 1ssued both Sales Tax Revenue Bonds whereby the
City has pledged mcome derived form the Gross Receipts Tax and billings on water to

pay the required debt service on the bonds.

Business-Type Debt

The City of Raton Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund had the following debt cutstanding

at June 30, 2008:

$750,000 2™ Series 1976 Joint Water and Sewer Extension
Revenue Series Bonds, varying annual installments, interest

at 5%, matures 7/2016

$

$4,000,000 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds, monthly payments of

$22 113, interest at 5%, matures 11/2019

Total
Current portion
Long term portion

313,000

2,145.825

2,458,825
(308,196}
S 2,150,629

The following schedule details the debt service requirements for revenue bonds:

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 - 2018
2019 - 2023

Total

1976 2™ Series

Sales Tax Revenue Bonds

Principal Interest Principal Interest

5 28,000 14,950 161,738 103,508
30,000 13,500 170,013 95,227
31,000 11,975 178,711 86,523
33,000 10,375 187,854 77,374
35,000 8,675 197,465 67,756
156,000 16,100 1,149,607 176,338

- - 96,524 1110

$ 313,000 75757 2,141.912 607.836
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Governmental-Type Debt

20006 Series A - On April 18, 2006, the City borrowed $2,627,154 from the USDDA RUS
to finance the construction of the waste water treatment plant. The loan 1s designated as
the City of Raton, New Mexico Waste Water System Revenue bond Series 2000 A issued
under and pursuant to the city ordinance No 932. The loan is payable from pledged
revenues derived from the operations of the city waste water system.

2006 Series B — On April 18, 2006, the city borrowed $510,440 from the USDA RUS to
finance the construction of the waste water treatment. The loan 1s designated as the City
of Raton, New Mexico Waste Water System Revenue bond Series 2000 B 1ssued under
and pursuant to the city ordinance No 944, The loan is payable from pledged revenues
derived from the operations of the city waste water system.

NMPFA Notes Payable

The City entered info six agreements with the New Mexico Finance Authority to provide
financing for 1) purchase of two Class A fire trucks, dated June 16, 1998, paid off in May
2008; 2) construction, expansion, and improvement of the Welcome Center, dated March
17, 1998; 3) street improvements, dated June 9, 1998, 4) purchase of wheel loader for use
at the landfill, dated September 17, 2004, paid off in May 2008; 5) Construction of a
Recreation Center dated April 20, 2007; and 6) Environmental Services Gross Receipt
Tax Loan dated June 20, 2008.

Note No. 1. Fire Equipment

The loan is payable solely from the annual state fire allotment authorized pursuant to
Section 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978, in the amount certified by the State Fire Marshall or the
State Fire Board.

Note No. 2. Welconie Center

The loan is payable solely from 40% (2/5) of the revenues generated by the occupancy
tax 1mposed on lodging in the City of Raton pursuant to the Lodger's Tax Act,
Section 3-38-13 to 3-38-24, NMSA 1978 and City Ordinance No. 597 adopted on
March 9, 1971 as amended by City Ordinance No. 780 adopted on September 27, 1988.

Note No. 3. Street Improvenients

The loan 1s payable solely from the revenues derived from 1) the one-cighth of one
percent increment of municipal mfrastructure gross receipts tax imposed by the City of
Raton pursuant to Section 7-19D-11, NMSA 1978 and City Ordinance No. 830; and (2)

the municipal road gascline tax revenues received by the City of Raton from the State
pursuant to Section 7-1-6.27, NMSA 1978.
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Noite No, 4. Wiheel Loader

The loan is payable solely from the municipal environmental services gross receipts tax,
authorized under Governmental Unit Ordinance No. 921, adopted on February 25, 2003,
and was authorized pursuant to City Resolution No. 2004-17 adopted on July 26, 2004 as
amended by Resolution No. 2004-19 adopted on September 14, 2004.

Note No. 5. Recredition Center

The loan is payable solely from pledged revenues (municipal gross receipts tax imposed
by the Governmental Unit pursuant to Section 7-19D-9 NMSA 1978 and Governmental
Unit Ordinance No. 937), authorized under Governmental Unit Ordinance No. 951,
adopted on March 13, 2007.

Note No. 6. Environmental GRT Loan

The loan is payable solely from the municipal environmental services gross receipts fax,
authorized under Governmental Unit Ordinance No. 921, adopted on February 25, 2003
pursuant to Section 7-190-10, NMSA 1978, as amended, and was authorized pursuant to
City Resolution No. 2008-11 adopted May 15, 2008,

Balances and terms on the notes and bonds as of June 30, 2008 are as follows:

2006 series A

Original loan was $2,627,154, annual installments interest of S 2,567,154
4 38%, matures 04/18/2046.

2006 series B

Original Joan was $510,440 |, annual installments, interest of 4.38%, 500,440

matures 04/18/2046.

Fire Equipment

Original loan was $283,334, semi-annual installments
interest of 3.90% to 4.80%, matures 5/2008.
Welcome Center

Original loan was $663,909, semi-annual installments

mterest of 3.80% to 5.180%, matures 5/2018.
Street Improvements
Original loan was $1,122,152, semi-annual mstallments
interest of 3.85% to 5.05%, matures 5/2013.
Wheel Loader
Ongmal loan was $73,000, semi-annual installments
Interest of 2.45%, matures 5/2008.
Recreation Center
Total 4,
Current portion
Long-term poriion 5 3

401,961

461,112

129,622
200.250

929,372
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)
Future payment on the revenue bonds are as follows:

Series 2006A

Series 20068

Principal Interest Principal Interest
2009 $ 30,000 112,400 5,000 21,900
2010 30,000 111,100 6,000 21,700
2011 30,000 109,700 6,000 21,500
2012 30,000 108,400 6,000 21,200
2013 30,000 107,100 6,000 20,900
2014 - 2018 190,000 513,200 36,000 100,500
2019 -2023 230,000 468,600 44,000 91,900
2024 - 2028 290,000 412,400 55,000 81,300
2029 - 2033 360,000 343,100 68,000 68,300
2034 - 2038 440,000 258,700 84,000 51,900
2039 -2043 540,000 153,700 105,000 31,800
2044 - 2046 367,154 32.200 79.440 7.400
Total § 2,567,154 2,730,600 500.440 540,300

Future payments on the above notes payable to NMFA are as follows:
Recreation Environmental Welcome Street
Center GRT Loan Center Improvements

Principal Interest Principal Interest

Fiscal years ending June 30:

Principal Interest Principal Interest

2009 § 83946 125,037 24972 2,897 32,783 18,344 73,652 22,840
2010 86,948 122,027 29,688 2,678 34246 16,807 87,060 18,835
2011 90,067 90,067 30,526 1,839 35,808 15,169 91,932 14,579
2012 93,306 93,306 31,421 945 37,472 13,424 96,492 14,579
2013 96,679 96,679 - - 39,249 11,562 101,370 5,163
2014-2018 539,622 539,622 - - 222,403 31,538 - -
2019-2023 651,409 651,409 - - - - -

2024-2028 791,727 794,727 - - - - - -
2029-2046 756,688 756,688 - - - - - -
Total $3,190.392 1,823.067 116.607 8,358 401961 100,844 461,112 71.446

44



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Discretely Presented Component Units

Notes payable at June 30, 2008 for Raton Public Service are comprised of the following:
2002 note payable to New Mexico Finance Authority,

original amount of $2,693,610, due in annual
installments through May 1, 2022, interest rate at 2.06%

to 4.86%. § 2,095,416
Current portion (111,315}
Long-term portion 5 1984101

The loans are an obligation of the City of Raton with future revenues of Raton Public
Service Company pledged as collateral. The purpose is to finance an electric generation
plant in accordance with a joint powers agreements with Arkansas River Power
Authority.

The annual requirements to amortize the principal of all debt outstanding as of June 30,
2008 1s as follows:

Year Ended
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 111,315 90,803 202,118
2010 112,677 89,441 202,118
2011 116,929 85,481 202,410
2012 121,492 81,221 202,713
2013 126,359 76,670 203,029
2014-2018 717,604 302,756 1,020,360
2019-2022 789.040 129,881 918.921

S 2095416 856,253 2,951,669
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NOTE 8. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the following changes occurred in long term

Liabilities

Amount
Due
Balance Balance in One
June 30, 2007  Additions Deletions June 30, 2008 Year
Business-Type Activities
Revenue bonds $ 2,636,860 - (180,866) 2,455,994 308,196
Landhfll closure costs 754,000 281,500 - 1,035,500 -
Compensated absences 193,048 70,621  (62,655) 201,014
Governmental Activities
Compensated absences 344,578 167,801 (139,698) 372,741 -
Revenue bonds 3,102,594 - (35,000) 3,067,594 169,300
NMFA notes payable 1,027,028 644 482 (266,223 1,405,287 394,471

Total Primary Government § 8058108 1,164,464 (684.442) 8.538.130  §71.967

Component Unit

Loans payable $ _2.204.201 - _(108.785) 2.095.416 111.315

NOTE 9. CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COST

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover over its
landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and
moenitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure. Although closure and
postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the landfill stops
accepting waste, the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure costs as an
operating expense in each period based on landfill and capacity used as of each balance
sheet date.

The $1,035,500 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at June 30,
2008, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of
approximately 80% of the estimated capacity. Total closure and postclosure costs are
currently estimated to be about $1,294,315. None of the $1,294,315 has been mcurred to
date,

These payments are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure
care in 2008. The City expects to close the landfill in the year 2015. The City anticipates

funding these costs with increased user charges and use of Environmental Gross Receipts
Tax and available grants.

The liability for closure and postclosure costs is reflected i the Solid Waste Fund.
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NOTE 10. TAXES

Property Taxes. The City of Raton receives property taxes from the Colfax County
Treasurer for operational purposes. Property taxes are assessed on January 1 of each
year, except on livestock, and are payable in two equal installments on November 10th of
the year in which the tax bill is prepared and April 10th of the following year. Property
taxes are considered delinquent 30 days after their due date. Taxes on real property are a
lien against the property from January 1 of the year for which the taxes are imposed.

Tax levies are authorized by statute to service payments due on general obligation bonds,
which have been authorized pursuant to state law, and for general operating purposes.

The full faith and credit of the City shall be pledged to the payment of the negotiable
bonds. The governing body shall levy and collect, upon all the taxable property within
the municipality subject to taxation, such {axes as are necessary to pay the interest on and
the principal of the negotiable bonds as the interest and principal becomes due, without
limitation as to rate or amount. The City may pay the principal of and the interest on any
general obligation bonds from any available revenues, and the levy or levies of taxes may
be diminished to the extent such other revenues are available for the payment of such
principal and interest.

Proceeds from the issuance of general obligation bonds are restricted in usage to:

1. Erecting and operating natural or artificial gas works;
2. Frecting and operating electrical works;

3. Constructing, purchasing, rehabilitating, or any combination thereof, public
buildings, including additions and improvements thereto;

4. Building, beautifying and improving public parks within or outside the municipal
boundary, but not beyond the planning and platting jurisdiction of the
municipality.

5. Acquiring land or buildings for playgrounds, recreation centers, zoos, and other
recreational puiposes, and the equipment thereof, or any combination thereof;

6. Providing proper imeans for protecting from fire including, but not limited to,
purchasing apparatus for fire protection and providing, enlarging and umproving
fire equipment and facilities;

7. Laying off, opening, constructing, repairing, and otherwise improving municipal
alleys, streets, public roads and bridges or any combination thereof;

8. Providing apparatus for the collection and disposal of garbage and refuse;

9. Acquiring, constructing, and maintaining garbage and refuse disposal areas and
plants within or outside the municipal boundary.

47



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2008

NOTE 10. TAXES (CONTINUED)

10. Constructing or purchasing a system for supplying water or constructing and
purchasing such a system, for the municipality, enlargement, improvement,
extension or acquisition of the system, and acquisition of water or water rights,
necessary real estate or right of way, bridges and easements and necessary
apparatus for a water system, or any combination of the foregoing;

11. Constructing or purchasing a sewer system or the construction and purchase of a
sewer system, including, without limiting the generality of the foregoing,
acquiring, enlarging, improving or extending, or any combination of the
foregoing, said system;

12. Flood control purposes as provided in Section 3-41-1 NMSA 1978;

13, Constructing, purchasing, rehabilifating, or remodeling, or any combination
thereof, hospitals, including additions and improvements thereto;

14. Purchasing, improving, or erecting public auditoriums or public buildings of a
stimilar nature for general civic purposes, or for authorizing the improvement or
erection of public auditoriums or buildings of similar nature by agreement, with
officers of the City in which the municipality is located; and

15. Acquiring, purchasing, constructing, improving, rehabilitating, or remodeling, oy
any combination thereof, cemeteries or mausoleums.

Property tax revenues amounted to $483,084 for general operating purposes during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

Franchise Taxes. By authority of Chapter 3, Article 42 NMSA 1978 and various
ordinances, the City imposes a franchise tax on certain public utilities operating within
the mumicipality. During the year ended June 30, 2008, $208,707 was carned from
franchise taxes, including $93,280 in water residual payment.

Business Licenses. Under Chapter 3, Article 38 NMSA 1978, the City, by passage of an
ordinance, authorized the assessment of a registration fee equal to $35 per annum for all
businesses within the jurisdiction of the City. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
the City collected § 16,520 in business license fees.

Lodger's Tax. The City, through authority of Chapter 3, Section 38, NMSA 1978,
imposes an occupancy tax on lodging within the municipality. By law, certain
restrictions are placed on the expenditure of monies collected as follows:

1. A municipality or country imposing an occupancy tax of no more than two
percent shall use not less than one-fourth of the proceeds of such tax for the
purpose of advertising, publicizing, and promoting facilities authorized in Section
3-35-21 NMSA 1978, and tourist attractions.
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2. Subject to certain limitations, a municipality or City imposing an occupancy tax
of more than two percent shall use not less than one-half of the proceeds of such
tax for the purpose of advertising, publicizing, and promoting facilities authorized
i Section 3-38-21 NMSA 1978, and tourist attractions.

3. A muncipality or City imposing an occupancy tax may use the proceeds thereof
to defray the costs of:

a. Collecting and otherwise administering the tax;

Establishing,  constructing,  purchasing,  otherwise  acquiring,
reconstructing, extending, bettering, or otherwise improving fairgrounds,
exposition buildings, field houses, auditoriums, convention halls, or other
convention facilities, and acquiring improvements incidental thereto;

c. Equipping and furnishing such recreational facilities of the municipality or
City;

d. Acquiring a suitable town, grounds, or other real property or municipality
or City;

e. The principal of, and interest on, any prior redemption premiums due in

connection with, and any other charges pertaining to, revenue bonds
authorized by Section 3-38-23 or 3-38-24, NMSA 1978.

f.  Advertising, publicizing, and promoting such recreational facilities of the
municipality or City and tourist facilities therein;

g. Any combination of the foregoing purposes of transactions stated in this
section.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the City earned § 396,486 in lodger's tax and spent
$ 4,929 in promotional activities.

Motor Vehicle Registration Fees. Under the provisions of Chapter 66, Article 6, NMSA
1978, the State of New Mexico collects various fees for the registration and regulation of
motor vehicles in the state. Of the amount collected, certain specified amounis are
distributed to various governmental agencies within the Sate, including; the Motor
Vehicle Division, State Road fund, municipalities, and counties. After certain priority
payments, as detalled in 66-6-23 NMSA 1978 have been made, a portion of the
remaining fees held in the motor vehicle suspense fund are distributed as required in 66-
6-23 B (4) and 66-6-23 B (5). These distributions are commonly referred to as the 10%
and 15% motor vehicle tax distributions.

During the vear ended June 30, 2008, the City eamed § 16,240 in motor vehicle
registration fees.
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Excise Tax of Cigarettes. For the privilege of selling, giving or consunung cigarettes in
New Mexico, there is levied an excise tax at the rate of one and five hundredths cents
($.0105) for each cigaretie sold, given or consumed in New Mexico. The taxes are
collected pursuant to the provision of Chapter 7, Article 12, paragraph 3 NMSA 1978.

Cigarette taxes deposited into the City and Municipality Recreational Fund pursuant to
Chapter 7.1.6.11A 1978 (4.375% of the net receipts, exclusive of penalty and interest,
attributable to the cigarette tax) are distvibuted to the various counties and municipalities
and are restricted to usage as follows:

1. To each City in the proportion that the sales of cigarettes made witlun the City
borders, exclusive sales within any municipality in that City, bears to the total
sales of cigarettes in the state during such month; and

2. To each municipality in the proportion that the sales of cigarettes made within the
municipality during such month bears to the total sales of cigarettes in the state of
such month.

The funds distributed to the counties and municipalities under this section shall be used
for recreational facilities and salaries of instructors and other employees necessary to the
operation of such facilities. Such recreational facilities shall be for the use of all persons,
and juveniles and elderty persons shall not be excluded. Each City or municipality shall
establish a fund to be known as the "recreational fund" into which all monies received
from the City and Municipality Recreational Fund shall be deposited. As used in this
section, "Juvenile" means every person under the age of majority and "elderly" means
every person over the age of sixty years.

Cigarette taxes deposited into the City and Municipality Cigarette Tax Fund pursuant to
7.1.6.11B 1978 NMSA (9.5% of the net receipts, exclusive of penalties and interest,
attributable to the cigarette tax) are distributed to the various counties and municipalities
in the same manner as the City and Municipality Recreation Fund; however, the taxes so
distributed shall be deposited in the general fund of such counties and municipalities,
provided the cigarette tax revenues distributed under the provision of this section shall
not be earmarked or otherwise obligated under the terms or provision of any prior law,
prior local ordinance or prior bond agreement which pledges cigarette tax law, prior local
ordinance or prior bond agreement.

During the year ended June 30, 2008, the City collected the following distribution of
clgaretite taxes:

Recreation Fund 5 9,030
General Fund 17.992
$ 27.022
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Gasoline Tax. The State of New Mexico, by authority of Chapter 7, Article 13 NMSA
1978, imposes an excise tax of $.17 on each gallon of gasoline received in New Mexico.
Of the total gasoline taxes received, a portion is distributed to the various municipalities
within the state pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 1-6.9 NMSA 1978 and Chapter 7, Article
1-6.27 NMSA 1978.

Distributions of gasoline taxes received pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 1-6.9 must be
deposited mto a separate road fund for expenditure only for construction, reconstruction,
restrfacing or other improvements or maintenance of public roads, streets, alleys or
bridges, including right-of-way and materials acquisition. The distribution may also be
used to provide matching funds for projects subject to cooperative agreements entered
into with the State Highway and Transportation Department pursuant to Section 67-3-28
1978.  Any municipality or H class City that has created or that creates a "street
improvement fund" to which gasoline tax revenues or distribufions are nrevocably
pledged under Section 3-34-1 through 3-34-4 NMSA 1978 or that has pledged ail or a
portion of gasoline tax revenues under this section impressed with and subject to these
pledges.

Distributions of gasoline taxes received pursuant to Chapter 7, Article 1-6.27 shall be
used for the following purposes:

1. Reconstructing, resurfacing, maintaining, repairing, or otherwise improving
existing alleys, streets, roads or bridges, or any combination of the foregoing, or
laying of, opening, constructing or otherwise acquiring new alleys, streets, roads
or bridges, or any combination of the foregoing, provided that any of the
foregoing improvements may include but are not limited to, the acquisition of
rights of way.
To provide matching funds for projects subject to cooperative agreements with
the state highway and iransportation department pursvwant to Section 67-3-28
NMSA 1978, and
3. For expenses of purchasing, maintaining and operating transit operations and
facilities for the operation of a transit authority established by the municipal
transit law and for the operation of a vehicle emission inspection program. A
municipality may engage in the business of the transportation of passengers and
property within the political subdivision by whatever means the municipality may
decide and may acquire cars, trucks, motor buses and other equipment necessary
for operating the business. A municipality may acquire land, erect buildings and
equip the buildings with all the necessary machinery and facilities for the
operation, maintenance, modification, repair and storage of the cars, trucks, motor
buses and other equipment needed. A mumicipality may do all things necessary
for the acquisition and the conduct of the business of public transportation.
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During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City ecarned $ 294,379 in gasoline tax
distributions.

Municipal Gross Receipts Tax. Under authority of Chapter 7, Articles 19 and 19D,
NMSA 1978, the City of Raton adopted gross receipts taxing through ordinance. Said
ordinances provide for the imposition of gross receipt taxes on all non-exempt persons
engaging in business in the municipality. The tax is collected by the State of New
Mexico and remitted to the City after deducting certain administrative costs. During the
vear ended June 30, 2008, the City eamed taxes (after deduction of the administrative
fees) i the amounts shown below which were imposed under the above stated
authorities.

General Fund

City gross receipts tax § 1,355,728
Infrastructure gross receipts tax 169,570
Capital Projects Fund
Supplemental gross receipts tax 169,570
Special Revenue Fund
Environmental gross recelpts tax 84,641
Capital Projects ¥ Gross Receipts Tax Fund
Municipal gross receipts tax 338.932
$ 2,118,441

State Gross Receipts Tax. Under authority of Chapter 7, Article 1, NMSA 1978, the
State of New Mexico imposes a gross receipts tax on all business within the State. Of the
total collected, 1.225% of the taxable gross receipts are distributed to the municipality
reporting the taxable receipts. During the year ended JTune 30, 2008, the City eamed
$1,673,205 from the State under the above stated authority.

NOTE 11. WATER FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

The City passed ordinance number 824, effective March 15, 1991, granting a utility
franchise to the Raton Water Board for the operation of the City's water and sewer
system. The franchise will exist for twenty-five years. The City retains the authority to
determine rates and charges for the services provided. The ordinance sets forth the
provisions for the use of the City's property and the imposition of the franchise fee to be
paid to the City by the board. The agreement calls for the water and sewer utility to be
mncluded in the City's annual budget, requires quarterly financial reporting, and annually
audited financial statements.
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Plan Description. Substantially all of the City’s full-time employees participate in a
public employee retirement system authorized under the Public Employees Retirement
Act (Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978). The Public Employees Retirement
Association (PERA) is the administrator of the plan, which is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit retirement plan. The plan provides for retirement benefits,
disability benefits, survivor benefits and cost-of-living adjustments to plan members and
beneficiaries. PERA issues a separate, publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the plan. That report
may be obtained by writing to PERA, P.O. Box 2123, Santa Fe, NM 87504-2123. The
report is also available on PERA’s website at www.pera.state.nm.us.

Funding Policy. Plan members are required to contribute 7% to 16.3% of their gross
salary. The City is required to contribute 7% to 21.25% of the gross covered salary. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established in State statute
under Chapter 10, Article 11, NMSA 1978. The requirements may be amended by acts of
the legislature.

The City's primary employees are covered under one of the four plans available based
upon the employee group being covered as follows:

Regular Management  Police Fire
Employee Group Employees Employees Employees Employees

Plan Name

Municipal general member coverage 21 34 - -

Municipal police member coverage - - 16 18

Municipal fire member coverage - - - -
Employee contribution rate

on covered wages 7% 13.15% 16.3% 16.2%
Employer contribution rate

on covered wages 7% 9.15% 18.5% 21.25%
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The City’s contributions to PERA for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2008, 2007 and
2006 were $368,112, $337,112, and $317,193, respectively, which equal the amount of
the required contributions for each fiscal year.

NOTE 13. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of property, errors and omissions and natural disasters. The City participates
in the New Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund risk pool. The New Mexico Self-Insurer's Fund
risk pool operates as a common risk management and insurance program for workers
compensation and property and casualty coverage.

These funds are funded entirely by member contributions and are administered by the
New Mexico Self-Insurers’ Fund. The pools are authorized by joint powers agreements
entered into by each participating entity as a separate and independent government and
legal entity pursuant to the provisions of Sectiont 11-1-1 et. Seq. NMSA 1978.
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Listed below is a summary of the significant insurance coverage in force for the year
ended June 30, 2008:

Workers Compensation

Policy number:
Amount of coverage:
Expiration date:
Premium paid:

oo o

Property

Policy number:
Amount of coverage:
Expiration date:
Premium paid:

© R0 o

General Liability

Policy number
Amount of coverage:
Expiration date:
Premium paid:

© fo o

Auto Liability & Physical Damage

Policy number
Amount of coverage:
Expiration date:
Premium paid:

© o oo

Name and address of insurance agent:

Name and address of insurance agent:

Name and address of Insurance agent:

Name and address of insurance agent:

New Mexico Insurers' Fund

1710W

$2,000,000 per accident

Continucus unti] cancelled or terminated
$100,977

New Mexico Self Insurers’ Fund
1710P

Values on [ile

June 30, 2008

$16,464

New Mexico Self Insurers' Fund
1710L

Tort Limuits

June 30, 2008

$77,524

New Mexico Self Insurers' Fund
1710L

Tort Limits

June 30, 2008

$57,651

Property and general liability premiums paid include additional coverage for civil rights, employee
theft, inland marine, and fine arts. An additional policy was in force, which protected the City from
losses from law enforcement liability at $38,295.

There have not been any significant changes to coverage under the policies in force over the past few
years.
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The City has not filed any claims for which the settlement amount exceeded the msurance
coverage during the past three years. However, should a claim be filed against the
Authority which exceeds the insurance coverage, the City would be responsible for a loss
in excess of the coverage amounts. As claims are filed, the New Mexico Self-Inswrers'
Fund assesses and estimates the potential for loss.

At June 30, 2008, no unpaid claims have been filed which exceed the policy limits and to
the best of management's knowledge and belief all known and unknown claims will be
covered by insurance. No major lawsuits have been filed against the Citv of Raton.

New Mexico Self-Insurers' Fund has not provided information that would allow for a
reconciliation of changes in the aggregate habilities for claims for the current fiscal year
and the prior fiscal vear.

NOTE 14. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND OTHER LEGAL ACTION

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by the grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims,
including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds.
The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this ime, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is
not presently determinable, 1t 1s the opinion of City counsel that resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the City.
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NOTE 15. NET ASSET RESTATEMENT
During FY2008 it was noted the City had not recorded grants receivable for FY2007. To

correct the discrepancies between actual amounts and amounts previously reported,
beginning net assets for the governmental activities were restated as follows:

Net assets as originally reported,

June 30, 2007 $ 12,644 340
Restatement 146,364
Net assets, July 1, 2007, restated §  12.790,704

The effect of this restatement on the change in net assets for the year ended lune 30,
2007, was an Increase of $262,014, composed of an increase in operating grant revenues
of $32,741 and an increase in capital grant contributions of $229,873.

Governmental funds were affected as such related to the grant receivables:

Fund balance, Pool/Recreation Center as originally reported,

June 30, 2007 $ 867,060
Restatement 229873
Fund balance, July 1, 2007, restated $ 1,096,933

Fund deficit, Montoya Property as originally reported,

June 30, 2007 $ (41,673)
Restatement 32.741
Fund deficit, July 1, 2007, restated § (8.932)

The effect of these restatements on the change in fund balance for the year ended June
30, 2007 was an increase of $262,614, composed of an increase in grant revenues of
$229,873 for the Pool/Recreation Center fund and $32,741 for the Montoya Property
fund.
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Fund balance for the Library Building fund was restated as of June 30, 2007 to account
for artwork that was coded to the incorrect account, as follows:

Fund balance, Library Building fund as originally reported,

June 30, 2007 3 481,731
Restatement (116,250)
Fund balance, July 1, 2007, restated 3 365,481

There was no effect on the change in net assets or fund balance for the year ended June
30, 2007,

NOTE 16. FUND BALANCE DEFICITS
The following funds had fund balance/net assets deficits at June 30, 2008:

Special revenue fund

Fire Protection $100,937
Capital project funds

Street Improvements 63,370

Historic Building 2,277
Enterprise fund

Sanitation 434 805

The City intends to fransfer funds from the general fund to cover the deficits for the
governmental funds. The deficit in the enterprise fund is due to a long-term landfill
closure liability and the estimated future costs will be budgeted at the time the landfill
expenses are to be paid.
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The following funds had actual expenditures that exceeded budgeted expenditures for the
vear ended June 30, 2008 in the following amounts:

Fire Grants $ 1,550
Police Grants 22,450
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WATER AND SEWER FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Acluzl Favorable
Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Charges [or services 3 1,814,000 1,814,000 2,087,483 273,433
GRT taxes 1,175,000 1,175,000 1,391,772 216,772
Miscellaneous - - 7,698 7,698
Total revenues 2,989,000 2,989,000 3,486,953 497 953
Expenditures
Current
Salaries and fiinge benefits 1,695,941 1,095,941 949 504 146,347
General operating expenses 1,567,017 1,567,017 947 417 619,600
Total expenditures 2,662 958 2,662,958 1,897,011 765,947
Operating income 326,042 326,042 1,589,942 1,263,900
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Iuterest income 130,656 130,656 199,762 69,106
Transfers in (out) 287,725 287,725 (235.628) (523,353)
Total nonoperating revenues
and expenditures 418,381 418,381 (35,866) (454.247)
Changes in Net Assets 744,423 % 744,423 1,554,076 809,653
Budgeted beginning fund balance -
$ 744 423
Unbudgeted expenses
Depreciation expense (612,427)
Change it Net Assets, GAAP basis $ 941,649
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SANITATION FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unlavorable)
Revenues
Charges [or services $ 818,000 811,935 811,935
Slale sources 64,500 60,000 50,000
GRT taxes - - -
[nterest 20,000 11,399 11,399 -
Miscellaneous 11,500 11,290 11,29G -
Total revenues 214,000 804,624 804,624 -
Expenditures
Salaries and fimnge benefits 480,155 482,219 482,219 -
Capital Outlay 40,000 14,852 14,952 -
General operating expenses 391,931 421,419 421,419 -
Total expenditures 912,086 918,590 918,590
Operating income 1,914 (23,960) (23,960} -
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Interest income - -
Interest expense - - -
Total nonoperating revenues
and expenditures - - - -
Changes in Net Assefs 5 1,914 (23,966) (23,966) §
Unbudgeted expenses
Depreciation expense (75,877)
Addition to Landfill Closure Costs (281,500}
Change in accounts receivable (67,0973
Change in accounts payabie and accrued tabilities 223,188
Change in Net Assets, GAAP basis (225,252)
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Juvenile Recreation. To account for the operations and maintenance of recreation
facihties. Funding managed and/or owned by the City is provided by recreaticnal fees
charged fo users and cigarette taxes received pursuant to Section 7-12-15 NMSA 1978
which provides that the cigarette taxes received under this section shall be used for
recreational facilities.

Lodger's Tax. To account for the lodger's tax imposed pursuant to Ordinance 597, as
amended by Ordinance 780, as authorized under 3-38-13 through 3-38-24 NMSA 1978,
Ordinance 780 imposes a tax of 5% on gross taxable rent for lodging. The City must use
not less than 40% of the tax collected for advertising, publicizing and promoting tourist-
related attractions, facilities and events.

Emergency Medical Services, To account for fund received from the New Mexico
Emergency Medical Services Fund as authorized by Chapter 24 Article 10A NMSA 1978
for use in the establishment and enhancement of local emergency medical services in
order to reduce injury and loss of life.

Local Government Corrections. To account for the correction fees ($10) imposed
pursuant to 35-14-11 B.(1) NMSA 1978. The correction fees shall be used for municipal
jailer or juvenile detention officer traiming, for the construction planning, construction,
operation and maintenance of a municipal jail or juvenile detention facility, for paying
the cost of housing municipal prisoners in a City jail or housing juveniles in a detention
facility or for complying with match or contribution requirements for the receipt of
federal funds relating to jails of juvenile detention facilities.

CDBG Revolving Loan. To account for the collection on an economic development loan.
The loan was made from CDBG funds, which were passed through the State of New
Mexico, and the fund was created administratively by ordinance.

Environmenial Gross Receipts Tax. To account for gross receipts taxes authorized by
City Ordinance Pursuant to authority granted under 7-19D-10. The tax imposed is
limited to 1/16% and its use 1s restricted to the acquisition, construction, operation and
maintenance of solid waste facilities, water facilities, sewer systems and related facilities.

Fire Grants. To account for funds designated for fire expenditures relating to training
and equipping fire fighters. The fund was created administratively by ordinance.
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Insurance Reserve. To account for the costs relating to uninsured claims, 1f any, and
payments of deductibles on insured claims. Funding is provided by the participating City
fund and was created administratively by city ordinance.

Fire Protection. To account for the operations and maintenance of the fire department.
Funding is provided by a distribution from the fire protection fund established by Section
59A-6-5NMSA 1978 as authorized by Section 59A-53-2.

Law Enforcement Protection. To account for the maintenance and improvement of the
City's police department in order to enhance the efficiency and attractiveness of law
enforcement services. Funding is provided by distributions from the New Mexico Law
Enforcement Protection Fund as provided for under Chapter 29 Article 13, NMSA 1978.

Library Building. To account for the resources donated to the City for the specific
benefit of the ibrary. The city of Raton operates a free library as authorized by 3-18-14
NMSA 1978.

Police Grants. To account for funds designated for law enforcement expenditures
relating to training and equipping law enforcement personnel. The fund was created
administratively by ordinance.

Library Grants. To account for funds designated for library uses. This fund was created
administratively by ordinance.

Convention Center. To account for the costs of operating the convention center as
authorized by the City Commission pursuant to authority granted under Chapter 3 Article
58 NMSA 1978.

Police Narcotics. To account for monies received from the sale of seized assets, which
were sold under authority of the Federal Law Enforcement Assistant Act of 1965 (Public
Law 98-197 (89-197). Funds were distributed to the City pursuant to 29-1-10.1 NMSA
1978. Funds must be spent for law enforcement activities.

Local Law Enforcement Block Grant Fund. To account for funds designated for law
enforcement expenditures relating to tramning and equipping law enforcement personnel.
Authority 1s NMSA 6-1-6.

Region 1V Narcotics (Drug Tusk Force Grant). To account for funds designated for law
enforcement expenditures relating to implementation and operation of a multi-
Jurisdictional drug task force program. Grant funds are awarded to the Department of
Public Safety by the Federal Bureau of Justice Assistance which is a component of the
Office of Justice Programs. A subgrant agreement is made by and between the
Department of Public Safety and the City of Raton pursuant to the authority of the
consolidated appropriations act of 2005, Public Law 108-447.
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Airport Fund. To account for costs associated with the improvements to alrport runways.
Funding is provided from FAA federal granis and state funding.

2% Lodger’s Tax Building Fund. To account for a portion of the Lodger's Tax set aside
for the expansion, renovation and improvements to the Raton Welcome Center and other
city owned buildings.

Parks. To account for costs associated with improvements to city parks.

NMSHTD MAP Project.  To account for funds received from the state for costs
associated with the Raton Mapping Project, Funding is provided by the New Mexico
State Highway and Transportation Department.

Convention Center Fund  To account for funds to be used for Convention Center
improvements.

Montoya Property Fund. To account for funds related to the Montoya property
acquisition and development.

Historical Building Fund. To account for fund related to improving and restoring the
City’s historic buildings.

Y % Capital Improvements. Vi % Municipal Gross Receipts Tax adopted by Ordinance
No. 937 on January 25, 2005 pursuant to authority granied by 7-19D-11. Tax increase
effective July 2005 and use 1s restricted io Aquatic/Recreation Center design and
construction and municipal infrastructure improvements.

Street Improvements. To account for costs associated with the improvements to city
streets.  Funding is provided by Gasoline Taxes, State Co-op agreements and other
reimbursements.

GRT Swim Pool/Recreational Center. To account for the development and construction
of a recreational center. Funding in fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 was provided by the
Infrastructure gross receipts tax.

Waste Water Treatment Plant. To account for costs asseciated with the construction of a

new Wastewater Treatment Facility. Funding is provided from USDA loans, grant
funding and local funding/Raton Water Works. This is a capital projects fund.
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CITY OF RATON

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

NMFA Loan Fire Equipment. To accumulate monies for the repayment of the loan
received from NMFA. The distributions made annually by the State of New Mexico
Treasurer pursuant to Section 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978 in the amount certified by the State
Fire Marshall or the State Fire Board 1s pledged for the repayment of the loan.

NMFA Loan Street Iimprovements. To accumulate monies for the repayment of a loan
received from NMFA. Funding is provided by the revenues derived from (1) the one-
eighth of one percent increment of municipal infrastructure gross receipts tax umposed by
the City of Raton pursuant to Section 7-19D-11 NMSA 1978 and City Ordinance No.
830; and (2) the municipal road gasoline tax revenues received by the City of Raton from
the State pursuant to Section 7-1-6.27 NMSA 1978.

NMFA Loan Welcome Center. To accumulate monies for the repayment of the loan
received from NMFA. 40% of the revenues generated by the occupancy tax imposed on
lodging in the City of Raton pursuant to the Lodger's Tax Act, Sections 3-38-13 to 3-38-
24, NMSA 1978 and City Ordinance No. 597 adopted on March 9, 1971, as amended by
City Ordinance No. 780 adopted on September 27, 1988, is pledged for the repayment of
the loan.

NMFA Loan Wheel Loader. To accumulate monies for the repayment of the loan
received from NMFA. Revenues provided by the municipal environmental services gross
receipts tax, authorized under Governmental Unit Ordinance No. 921, adopted on
February 25, 2003, and was authorized pursuant to City Resolution No. 2004-17 adopted
on July 26, 2004 as amended by Resolution No. 2004-19 adopted on September 14, 2004,
ts pledged for the repayment of the loan.

Special Assessment Districts. To account for monies due from taxpayers who benefited
from improvements made in the Special Assessiment Districts.

Wastewater Treatment Flant.  To accumulate monies for the repayment of the
Wastewater System Revenue bonds Series 2006A and Series 2006B. Issuance of bonds
authorized pursuant to Ordinance No. 932 adopted August 10, 2004 and Ordinance No.
944 adopted February 14, 2006. The loan is payable from pledged revenues derived from
operation of the City waste water system.

NMFA Loan Recreation Center. To accumulate monies for the repayment of the loan
received from NMFA. Revenue provided by the quarter of one percent (1/4%) municipal
gross receipts tax, authorized under Governmental Unit Ordinance No. 937, adopted on
January 25, 2007, 1s pledged for the repayment of the loan.

NMFA Environmental GRT Loan — To accumulate monies for the repayment of the loan
recelved from NMFA. Revenue provided by the one-sixteenth of one percent (.0625%)
municipal environmental services gross receipts tax, authorized under Goverrumental Unit
Ordinance No. 921, adopted on February 25, 2003 and was authorized pursuant to City
Resolution No. 2008-11 adopted May 15, 2008 is pledged for the repayment of the loan.
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CITY OF RATON

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and temporary investments
Accounts receivable
Due from other funds
Prepaid expenses

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total current liabilities
FUND BALANCE
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditures

Total fund balance

Total liabilities and
fund balance

Emergency Local
Tuvenile Lodgers' Medical) Governmental
Recreation Tax Services Corrections
0,057 133,321 15,268 54,004
134 45,405 - 553
6,191 178,726 15,268 54,557
2,131 - - -
2,131 - - -
4,060 178,726 15,268 54,557
4 060 178,726 15,268 54,557
6,191 178,726 15,268 54,557
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

CDBG
Revolving  Environmental Fire Insurance
Loan GRT Grants Reserve
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and temporary invesonents 3 64,998 473,287 14,131 -
Accounts receivable - 7,516 129,106 -
Due from other funds - - - -
Prepaid expenses - - - -
Total assets $ 64,998 480,803 143,237 -

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - - 106,086 -
Accrued expenses - - - -
Accrued payroll - - - -
Due to other funds - - - _
Deferred revenue - - - -

Total current liabilities - - 106,086 -

FUND BALANCE
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
year's expenditwes 64,998 480,803 37,151 -

Total fund balance 64,998 480,803 37,151 -

Total liabilities and
fund balance ) 04,998 480,803 143,237 -
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SPECTAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Law
Fire Enforcement  Library Police Library
Protection Protection Building Grants Grants
ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and temporary investiments 3 39,188 3,011 383,494 - 454
Accounts receivable 90,270.00 - - - -
Due from other funds - - - - -
Prepaid expenses - - - - -
Total assefs $ 129,458 3,011 383,494 - 454
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 99,685 - - - -
Accrued expenses . - - - _
Accrued payroll - - - - -
Due to other funds - - - - -
Deferred revenue - - - - -
Total current liabilities 99,685 - - - -
FUND BALANCE
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
yeat's expenditures 29,773 3,011 383,494 - 454
Total fund balance 29,773 3,011 383,494 - 454
Total liabilities and
fund balanee § 129,458 3,011 383,494 - 454
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Local Law
Convention Police Enforcement  Region IV
Center Narcotics Block Grant Narcotics Toral
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and temporary investnents S - 327 3,000 1,190,546

Accounts receivable - - - 1,438 274,422
Due from other funds - - - - .
Prepaid expenses - - - .

Total assels 3 - 327 3,006 1,438 1,464,968

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable ) - - - - 205,771
Accrued expenses - - - - 2,131
Accrued payroll - - - - -
Due to other funds - - - - ;
Deferred revenue - - - - _

Taotal current liabilities - - - - 207,902

FUND BALANCE
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
vear's expendifures - 327 3,006 1,438 1,237,066

Total fund balance - 327 3,006 1,438 1,257,066

Total liabilities and
fund balance $ - 327 3,006 1,438 1,464,968
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

June 30, 2008
/4% Waste Water
2% Lodgers Capital Treatment Montoya
Tax Alrport Irnprovements Plant CP Property
ANSETS
Current Asscls
Cash and temporary invesimenis $ 381 - 443 304 - R
Accounts recervable - 40,576 13,069 - -
Duc {rom other funds - - - - -
Prepaid expenses - - - -
Totul assets 35 331 40,576 436603
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabililies
Cash overdraft $ - - - .
Accounls payable - - -
Accrued paytoll - - - - -
Duc to other funds - - - - -
Deferred revenue - - - R -
Total current liubilitics - - R - _
FUND BALANCE
Reserved - - . R
Reserved for prepaids - - .
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
year's expendilures 381 40,576 436.663 - -
Total fund balance 381 40,576 436.6063 - -
Total liabilitics and
funil bajance 3 381 40,576 436,663 - -
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CONMBINING BALANCE SHELET
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
June 30,2008

ASSETS
Current Assels
Cash and lemporary invesiments
Accounts recervalile
Due liom other funds
Prepaid expenses

Totul usscts

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Cuasli overdralt
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll
Due io other funds
Deferred revenue

Tutul current liabilitics

FUND BALANCE
Reserved
Reserved for prepaids
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent
year's expendilures

Total fund balance

Total liahilities and
fund balance

Street Hislonc Pool/Rec

Water [mprovements Parks Building Center Total
$ - - - - 1,220,387 1,664,362
10,900 114,220 733,568 90,000 15,085 1,017,418
) 10,900 114.220 733,368 90000 1,235.472 2.681.780
5 9,940 29,508 365,039 35,795 - 460,282
- 148,082 - 36,482 - 184,564
9,940 177,500 365,039 93,277 044,840
960 (63,370} 368.529 (2,277) 1235472 2,036,934
960 {63.370) 368,529 (2277) 1,235472  2.036.934
5 10,900 114.220 733,568 90,000 1235472 2.681.780
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BEBT SERVICE 'UNDS

June 30, 2008

NMEFA-Loan Sureet Welcome Special
Fire Tprovement Center Assessnients
Equipment Loan Loan Districts
ARSETS
Cirent Assels
Cush and wipeniy imvestnents § 29,514 200,011 62,400 -
Accounts receivable, net - - 6,724
il sequisition costs - net - 14,500 - -
Tatal assets S 29514 210,511 62,400 6,724
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Current Liabilities
Cush overdrufi g - - - -
Accouius payable - - - -
Accrued payrod - - - -
Due 1o oticr finds - - - -
Delened revenue - - - 5.619
Totai current Liubilities - - - 5,619
FUND BALANCE
Ruserved for debt service 29514 200,311 62,406 1,145
Total fund balance 29,514 210,511 62,406 1,105
Total linbilifies and
fund balance kY 20514 210,511 62,406 6,724




STATE QF REW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2008

ARSETS
Culrent Asscis
Cash and weopeniny imveshments
Actounts receivable, net
Loan acquisition ¢osts - net

Totul nssets

LIABILITIES AND FURD BALANCE
Curreni Linbilities
Cash overdrall
Accounts pavable
Acerued payroll
Due 1o other fonds
Delerred revenue

Tatul current liabilities

FUND BALANCE
Reserved (or debt sesvice

Total fund balance

Totul linbilities and
fund balance

Wastewaler
NMTA-Loan Treatment Recreauon
Loader Plam Cuenter Total
$ 2,249 135,823 254,102 687,105
- - - 6,714
. N - 10,500
3 2,249 138,823 254,102 704,329
< . . R .
- - - 5,619
. . - 5,619
2.249 138,823 254,102 698,710
2,249 138,823 754,102 698,710
g 2.249 138,823 234,102 704,329




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
June 30, 2008

Revenues
Taxes
Staie sources
Federal sources
Fees and fines
Charges [or services
Interest
Miscellaneous
Rent

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Cultura) and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service

Total expenditures

Excess (Defciency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

Other financial sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing

sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance, beginning of year
as originally reported

Restatement

Fund balance, restated

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

See Notes fo Financial Statenments.

Emergency Local
Juvenile Lodgers' Medical ~ Governmental
Recreation Tax Services Corrections
5 {5,638) 423,996 - -
- - 30,150 -
- - - 11,535
110 7,046 639 1,992
- - 699 -
{5,528) 431,042 31,508 13,527
- 152,960 22,905 1,892
15,084 20,268 - -
- - 22,430 -
15,084 174,228 45335 1,892
(20,612) 256,814 (13.827) 11,635
12,000 - 22,431 -
- (208,599) - -
12,000 (208,599) 22,431 -
(8.612) 48,215 8,604 11,635
12,672 130,511 6,604 42,922
12,672 130,511 6,064 42,922
3 4,060 178,726 15,268 54,557
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CITY OF RATON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CIHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2008

CDBG
Revolving  Environmental Fire Insurance
Loan GRT (rrants Reserve
Revenues
Taxes 5 - 86,837 - -
State sources - - 142,466 -
Federal sources - - 333,796 -
Fees and fines - - - -
Charges for services - - 2,712 -
Interest 2,576 20,758 - 2,471
Miscellaneous - - - -
Rent - - - -
Total revenues 2,576 107,595 478,974 2,471
Expenditures
Current
General government - 3,492 - -
Public safety - - 61,776 -
Cultural and recreation - - - -
Capital outlay - 105,000 393,283 -
Debt service - - - -
Total expenditures - 108,492 455,059 -
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 2,576 {897) 23915 2,471
Other financial sources (uses)
Transfers - - - -
Transfers out - (17,604) - (78,942)
Total other financing
sources {uses) - {17,604) - (78,942)
Net change in fund balance 2,576 (18,501) 23,915 (76,471)
Fund balance, beginning of vear
as originally reported 62,422 499,304 13,236 76,471
Restaternent - 0 - -
Fund balance, restated 62,422 499 304 13.236 76,471
TFund balance (deficit), end of year $ 64,998 480,803 37,151 -

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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CITY OF RATON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

June 30, 2008

Law
Fire Enforcement  Library Police Library
Protection  Protection Building Grants Grants
Revenues
Taxes 5 - - - - -
Stale sources 405,494 29,600 - 144,506 7,726
Federal sources - - - - -
Fees and fines - - - - -
Charges for services - - - - -
Interest 4,548 120 17,513 - -
Miscellaneous - - 500 - -
Rent - - - - B
Total revenues 440,042 29,720 18,013 144,566 7,720
Expenditures
Current
General government 73,159 - - - -
Public safety 13,382 - - - -
Cultural and recreation - - - - 7,275
Capital outlay 430,932 28,258 - 144,560 -
Debt service - - - - -
Total expenditures 517,473 28,258 - 144,560 7,273
Excess (Deficiency} of Revenues
Over Expenditures (107,431) 1,462 18,013 - 453
Other financial sources (uses)
Transfers in 140,440 - - - -
Transfers out {8,937 - R R R
Total other financing
sources (uses) 131,503 - - - -
Net change in fund balance 24,072 1,462 18,013 - 453
Fund balance, beginning of year
as originally reported 5,701 1,549 481,731 - 1
Restatement - - (116,250) - -
Fund balance, restated 5,701 1,549 365,481 - 1
Fund balance (deficit), end of year 3 29773 3,011 383,494 - 454

See Notes to Financtal Statements.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCES

SPECIAL REVENULE FUNDS

June 30, 2008
Local Law
Convention Police Enforcement Region IV
Center Narcotics  Block Grant  Narcotics Total
Revenues
Taxes A - - - - 505,195
State sources - - - - 760,002
Federal sources - - - 2,407 336,203
Fees and fines - - - 11,535
Charges for services - - - - 2,712
interest 599 5 - - 38,397
Miscellaneous - 290 - 1,399 2,888
Rent - - - - -
Total revenues 5399 295 - 3,806 1,676,932
Expenditures
Current
General government - - - 7,230 261,658
Public safety - 250 - - 75,408
Cultural and recreation - - - - 43,625
Capital outlay - - - - 1,124,469
Debt service - - - - -
Total expenditures - 250 - 7,230 1,505,140
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 599 45 - (3,424) 171,792
Other financial sources (uses)
Transfers in - - - 4 862 179,733
Transfers out {19,144) - - - (333,2206)
Total other financing
sources (uses) (19,144) - - 4,862 {153,493)
Net change in fund balance {18,545) 45 - 1,438 18,299
Fund balance, beginning of year
as originally reported 18,545 282 3,006 - 1,355,017
Restatement - - - - (116.250)
Fund balance, restated 18,545 282 3,006 - 1.238.767
Fund balance (deficit), end of vear 5 - 327 3,006 1,438 1.257 066

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCLES

CALITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

June 30, 2008

174%% Waste Water
2% Lodgess Cupiial NMSHD Treatment Montoya
Tax Adrport Improvements MAP Projects  Plant CT° Property
Kevenues
Taxes & - - 352,001 - - -
Stade sources - 11,521 - 250,000 203,694 31,191
Federal sources - 380,406 - - 137,546 -
Chuarges for services - R - N R _
Micellieous 1,000 - - - R
Interest 110 187 6,888 639 1,845 -
Total revenues 1,110 392114 354,889 250,639 461,085 31,191
Expenditeres
Current
General govenunent
Operating 191,133 - 5,569 - - 3,019
Public Watks Expense - - - - - -
Capital ontlsy - 414,223 - 345,873 481,198 22,259
Total expenditures 191,133 414,223 5,569 345,873 481,198 25,278
Excess (Deliciency) of Revenues
Over Expendicures (190,023 (22,109) 133,320 (93,234) (18,113) 3,913
Other Mnancial sources (vses)
Taransfers in 227,743 53,268 271,418 260,617 1,029 3,019
Trausfers out (46,958) - (443,764) (163,383) - -
Total other fnsncing
sources (Uses) 180,785 53,268 (171,346) 95,234 1,029 3,019
Net change in fundl balance (9,238) 31,159 181,974 - (17,084) §,932
Fund babince (deficit), beginning of year ,
as orighally reported 9,619 9.417 274,689 - 17,084 (:41,673)
Restatement - - - - - 32,741
Fund balace (delicit), beginning of year, restated 9.019 9.417 274,689 17,084 (8.932)
Fundl balanece (deficit), end of year 8 381 40,576 456,663 - - -
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CITY OF RATON

COMBINING STATEMNENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

June 30, 200¥

Sueet Historic Poo¥Rec
Waler  Improvements Parks Building Cenler Total
Revenuus
Taxus 5 - 278,992 - - 161.603 792,596
Stale sONrces 112,679 102,226 1,113,368 100,000 162,175 2,414,054
Fedeml sources - - 40,742 - - 578,694
Charges for scrvices - 3,750 - - - 3,150
Miscellancous - - 371,457 - - 372,857
Interest 1,283 - - 32,302 43,254
Tatal revenues 312,679 386,231 1,526,167 100,000 382080 4,203,205
Expendilures
Cumrent
General governuenl
Operalng - 255,660 96,642 86,541 038,585
Public Waorks Expense - - - - - -
Capital outhay 301,996 - 1,224,795 103,536 58,000 2.954.580
Tatal expenditures 301,996 255,660 1,321,438 105,536 144,341 3,592,445
Excess (Deficiency) of Revennes
Over Expenditires 19,683 130,591 204,729 (5,336) 238.539 612,760
Quier fnancial sources (uses)
Transfeis in - 163,800 3,259 #3,753 1,065,906
Transfers out (9,723} (201.767) - (183,753)  (1.051.34%)
Total other finuncing
sogurces {uses) (5,723) (201,767) 163,800 3,239 (100,000) 17,538
Net change in fund balance 960 (71,176) 368,529 (2,277) 138,339 630318
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of vear ,
as orighally reported - 7806 - - 867,060 1,144,002
Restatement - - - - 229,872 262 614
Fund baknce (deficit), beginning of year, restated 7,806 1,096,932 1,406,616
Fund balance {deficit), end of vear $ 960 (63,370} 368,529 2,277 1,233,472 2,036,934
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CITY OF RATON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPLENDITURES AND CHANGLES IN

FUND BALANCES

DEBT SERVICE [UNDS

June 30, 2008

NMFA-Loun Street Welcome Speciu)
[ire Improvement Cenlter Assessments
Equipinent Loun L.oan Districts
Revenues
Taxes k3 - - - -
Stale sources - - - -
FFederal sonrces - - - -
Charges lor services - - - -
Miscellancous - - - -
linterest 3,107 11,290 4,076 -
Tutal revenues 3,107 11,290 4,076 -
Expenditures
Debt service
Principal 33,225 79,878 31,410 -
Interest 1,529 27,877 18,708 -
Other 83 1,353 1.080 -
Total expenditures 34,837 109,108 51,198 -
Excess (Deficiency) ot Revenues
Over Expenditures (31,730) (97.818) (47,122 -
Other tinancial sources {uses)
Transfers i {out) 8.937 106,333 46,958 -
Total vther financing
sources {uses) 8,937 106,533 46,958 -
Net change in fund halance (22,793 8,715 (164) -
Fund balance, begmming of year 52,307 201,756 62,570 1,105
Tund bulanee, end of year Y 20514 210,511 62,406 1,105
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

[FUND BALANCES

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

June 30, 2008

NMFA-Loan  Wustewater

Loader Treatment Recreution
Ds Plant Center Total
Reventies
Tuxes $ - - -
Staie sources - - - -
Federal sowces - - - -
Charges for services - - - -
Miscelancous - - - -
Interest 516 5061 9.305 33,353
Tuotul revenues = 316 5,061 9,305 33,355
Expenditures
Debt service
Principul 20,737 35,000 58,380 258,630
Interest 525 135,738 122,617 306,994
Other 52 - 8,370 10,938
Tuotal expenditures 21,314 170,738 189,367 376,562
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendifures (20,798) (163,677) (180,062} (543,207}
Other tinancial sources (uses)
Transfers in (our) 17,604 234,599 206,992 621,623
Tutal other financing
sources (uses) 17,604 234,599 206,992 621,623
Net change in fund balance (3,194) 68,922 26,930 78,416
Fund balance, beginning of year 5,443 69,901 227,172 620,294
Fund balanee, end of year § 1,249 138,823 254,102 698,710
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

JUVENILE RECREATION FUND 203
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Taxes
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public safety
Total expenditures
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under} expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Changes 111 accounts receivable
Changes i accrued liabilities

GAAP change n fund balance

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorabie
Original Final Amounts  (Unfavorable)
3,000 3,000 9,030 6,030
200 200 110 (90)
3,200 3,200 9,140 5,940
15,000 15,200 15,084 116
15,000 15,200 15,084 116
15,000 15,000 12,000 (3,000)
15,000 15,000 12,000 (3,000)
3,200 § 3,000 6,056 3,056
3,200
(14,668)
S (8,612)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LODGERS TAX 3% FUND 204

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Aclual Favorable
Original Final Amounts  (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Municipal taxes S 350,000 396,486 396,486 -
Miscellaneous - - - -
[nterest 3,200 7,046 7,046 -
Total revenues 353,200 403,532 403,532 -
Expenditures
Culture & Recreation 195,000 180,369 180,369 -
Total expenditures 195,000 180,369 180,369 -
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers out {190,000) (208,599) (208,599)
Total other financing sources (190,000) (208,599) (208,599) -
Revenues and other financing sources over
{(under) expenditures and other
financing uses (31,800) % 14,564 14,564 -
Budgeted beginning cash 31,800
$ -
Changes in accounts receivable 27,510
Changes n accrued liabilities 6,141
GAAP change i fund balance $ 48,215
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICES FUND 208

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State Sources
Miscellaneous revenue

Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
Public Salely
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Budgeted Amounts Varnance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable)
20,000 30,150 30,150 -

- 1,358 1,358 -
20,000 31,508 31,508 -
20,000 38,171 22,905 15,266
22,431 ; 22,430 22,430
42,431 38,171 45335 7.164
22,431 22,431 22,431 §
22,43} 22,431 22431 -

- $ 15,768 8,604 {7.164)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AIND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CORRECTIONS FUND 21¢

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts (Unfavorable)
Levenues
Fines h 7,000 7,000 11,535 4,535
Interest 1,000 1,000 1.992 992
Total revenues 3,000 8.000 13,527 5.527
Expenditures
Current
Public safety 8,000 8,000 1,892 6,108
Tatal expenditures 8,000 8,000 1,892 6,108
Transfers iny - - . .
Translers out - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
financing uses - % - 11,635 11.635

Budgeted beginning cash .




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CDBG REVOLVING LOAN FUND 218
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Variance

Favorable
Original Final Aclual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
lterest h 2.500 2,500 2,576 76
Total revenues 2.500 2,500 2,576 76
Expenditures
Currenl
General government 5,000 5.000 - 5000
Total expenditures 5,000 5,000 - 5,000
Transfersin - - - -
Transters out - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing vses 2,500) § (2,500) 2,576 3,076
Budgeted beginning cash 2,500
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATENMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAY BUDGETARY BASIS)
ENVIRONMENTAL GRT FUND 216

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actuai Favorable
Orignal Final Amounts {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes A 72,760 72,760 84,641 11.881
Interest 9,000 9,000 20,758 11,758
Total revenues 81,760 81,760 105,399 23,639
Expendinires
Cwrrent
General goverrment 2500 108,676 108,492 184.00
Total expenditures 2,500 108,676 108,492 184
Transfers m - - - -
Transfers out {21.126) (21,126) (17,604) 3,522
Total other fimancing sources (21,126) (21,126) (17,604) 3,522
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expendimres and other
[inancing uses 58,134 § (48.042) {20,697) 26,977
Budgeted beginning cash -
5 58,134
Change in accounts receivable 2,196
GAAP change in fund balance 3 (18,501)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

FIRE GRANTS FUND - 201
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State sources
Federal grant
Charges [or service

Total revenues
Expenditures
Cwrrent
Public safety
Capital Outlay
Total expenditures
Transfers m
Transfers oul
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change in accounts receivable
Change in accounts payable

GAAP change in find balance

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable

Onginal Final Alounts {(Unfaverabie)
63,000 73,683 73,683 -

- 285,926 285,926 -

- 2,712 2,712 -
63,000 362,321 362,321 -
56,841 60,225 61,775 (1530)
12,000 287,197 287,197 -
08,841 347,422 348,972 {1550,
(5841) % 14,899 13,349 {1,550

5,841
116,653
{(106,087)
5 23,915
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
INSURANCE RESERVE - 207
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures
Current
General governmment
Total expenditures
Transfers in
Transfers oul
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change m accounts payable

GAAP change in fund balance

Budgeled Amounts Vartance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounls {Unfavorable)
2,471 2,471 -
2,471 2,471 -
{78,942) (78,542) -
(78,942} (78,942) -
5 (76,471) (76,471) -
(76,471)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FIRE PROTECTION FUND-202
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State sources
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues
Expenditures
Curresil
Public Safety
Capital Ouilay
Total expenditures
Trausfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources over

{under) expenditures and other
financing uses

Change in accounts receivable
Change in accounts payable

GAAF change in fund balance

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable

QOriginal Final Amounts (Unfavorable)
288,000 322,609 322,609 -

3,500 4,547 4,548 1
10,000 - - -

301,500 327,156 327,157 l
108,000 86,541 86,541 -
171,063 331,247 331,247 -
279,063 417,788 417,788 :

- 100,000 100,000 -
(8,937} (8,937) (8,937) -
(8,937) 91,063 91,063 .
13,500 431 4372

82,885
(99,683)
5 (16.368)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICCG

CITY OF RATON

STATENMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LAW ENFORCEMENT PROTECTION FUND - 206

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Aclual Favorable
Original Final Amounts (Unlavorable)
Revenues
Slate Sources $ 29,600 29,600 26,600 -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Inferest 300 500 120 {380)
Total revenues 30,100 30,100 20,720 (380)
Expenditures
Cuurrent
Public safety - - - -
Capital outlay 30,100 30,100 28,258 1.842
Total expenditures 30,100 30,100 28.258 1,842
Transfers in - - - -
Trausfers out - - - .
Total other financing sources - - - -
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expendifures and other
financing uses - 5 - 1.462 1.462

Budgeted beginning cash -
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

LIBRARY BUILDING FUND - 211
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Actual

Original Fina! Alnounts

Variance
Favorable
{Unlavorable)

Revenues
Inierest $

10.000 10,000 18.013

8,013

Total revenues

10,000 10,000 18,013

8.413

Expendifures
Current
Cultural and recreation
Capital Outlay

Total expenditures

Transfers
Transfers oul

Totatl other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under}) expenditures and other
financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

10,000 § 10,000 18.013

§.013

10,000




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL {(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

POLICE GRANTS FUND 209
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State Sowrces
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures
Carrent
Public Safety
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Transfers m
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Budgeied Amounts

Variance

Actual Favorable
Onginal Final Amounts {Unfavorable)
122,116 144 566 22,450
122,116 144,566 22,450
122,116 144,566 (22.450)
122,116 144,566 22,450
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT QF REVENTES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LIBRARY GRANTS FUND 213
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues

State Sources

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current

Cultural and recreation

Total expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sonrces
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Budgeted Amounls Variance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts {Unfavorable)
20,369 20,375 7,726 (12,649
20,365 20,375 7,726 (12,649)
20,369 20,375 7,273 13,102
20,369 20,375 7,273 13,102
- - 433 453
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CONVENTION CENTER FUND 214

Year Ended June 306, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Aclual
Original Final Alnounts

Variance
Favorable
(Unfavaorable)

Revenues
Stle Granis - - .
Interest - - 599

399

Total revenues - - 509

599

Expenditures
Cwrrent
Culiure and recreation - - -
Capital outlay - - .

Total expenditures - - -

Transfers in - - -
Transiers out - (19,145 {19,144)

Total other financing sources - (19.1453) (19,144)

Revenues and ofher financing sources over
(under) expenditares and other
financing uses - 3 (19,145) (18,545)

GOH)

Budgeted beginning cash -

el
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
POLICE NARCOTICS FUND 219

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Variance

Favorable
Original Final Aciual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Interest 5 20 20 295 275
Total revenues 20 20 295 275
Expendilures
Current
Public safely 300 300 250 50
Total expenditures 300 300 250 50
Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and ofher
financing uses (280) § (280) 45 323
Budgeted Beginning Cash 280
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACITUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LOCAL LAW ENFORCEMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND 220
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounis {Unfavorable)

Revenues
State sources $ - - -

Total revenues - - - -

Expendifures
Current
Capital Outlay 3,006 3,006 - 3,008

Total expenditures 3,006 3,006 - 3,006

Transfers in - - - -
Transfers out - - _ -

Total other financing sources - - - -

Revenues and other financing sources over

{under) expenditures and other
financing uses (3,006) § {3,006) - (3,008)

Budgeted beginning cash 3.006
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
REGION IV NARCOTICS GRANT - FUND 221

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
Revenues
Federal grant $ - 969 969 -
Miscellaneous - 1,400 1.399 (n
Total revenues - 2,369 2,368 (1)
Expenditures
Current
General government - 7,230 7,230 -
Public safety - - - -
Public works - - - -
Culture and recreation - - - -
Capital outiay - - - -
Total expenditures - 7,230 7,230
Transfers in - 5,000 4,862 {138)
Transfers out - - - -
Total transfers - 5,000 4,862 {138)
Revenues and other financing sources aver
(under) expenditures and other
financing uses - 5 139 - 139
Budgeted beginning cash -
Changes in accounts receivable 1,438
GAAP change in fund balance $ 1,438
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
LODGERS TAX 2% FUND 205

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts  (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Interest $ 1,200 109 110 1
Miscellaneous - 1,000 1,000
Total revenues 1,200 1,109 1,110 1
Expenditures
General government 148,608 191,133 191,133
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures 148,608 191,133 191,133
Transfers In 190,000 208,599 227,743 19,144
Transfers Out (51,199) (51,199) (46,958) 4,241
Total other financing sources 138,801 157,400 180,785 23,385
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
financing uses (8,607) §  (32,624) (9,238) 23,386
Budgeted beginning cash 8,607
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAATD BUDGETARY BASIS)

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
AIRPORT FUND - 300
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Amounts {Unfavorable)
Revenues
State sources $ 19,655 11,521 11,521 -
Federal sources 357,008 449,247 349,247 (100,000)
Miscellaneous - - - -
Interest - 187 187 -
Total revenues 376,753 460,955 360,955 {100,000)
Expenditures
Capital outlay 396,409 414,223 414,223 -
Total expenditures 396,409 414,223 414,223 -
Transfers in 19,656 53,268 53,268 -
Transfers out - - - -
Taotal other financing sources 19,656 53,268 53,268 -
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financing uses - 5 100,000 - (100,000)
Budgeted beginuing cash -
$ }
Change in accounts recervable 31,159
GAAP change in fund balance $ 31,159
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATENMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
PARKS FUND 301
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State sources
Miscellaneous
[nterest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Capital cutlay

Total expendifures
Transfer in
Trunsfer out
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
{(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change m accounts receivable

GAAP change n find balance

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Aclual Favorable
Original Final AIOUNIES (Unfavorable)
435,200 357,638 420,742 {136,896
- 600,000 371,857 (228,143)
435,200 1,157,638 792,599 (365,039)
599,000 1,321,438 1,321,438 -
599,000 1,321,438 1,321,438 -
163,800 163,800 163,800 -
163,800 163,800 163,800 -
- - {365,039 {365,039)
733,568
s 368,529
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

NMSHTD MAP PROJECT FUND 305

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Variance

Aclual Favorable
Original Final Amourn! (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Stale sources § 3,350,000 3,330,000 230,000 (3,100,000)
Miscellaneous 400,060 400,000 - {400,000)
Interest - - 639 639
Total revenues 3,750,000 3,750,000 250,630 (3,499,361)
Expenditures
Capital outiay 4,133,334 3,845,873 3435873 3,300,000
Total expenditures 4,133,334 3845873 345,873 3,500,000
Transfers in 383,334 260,617 260,617 -
Transters out - (165,383) (165,383) -
Total other financing sources 383,334 95.234 95,234 -
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
finanging uses - (639) - 639

Budgeted beginning cash -




STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
MONTOYA PROPERTY FUND 307
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State sources
[nterest
Total revenues
Expendifures
General Government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Transfers i
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Revenues and other finaicing sources over
{(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change m accounts receivable
Change 1n accounts payable

GAAP change in fund balance

Budgeted Amounts

Varlance

Actual Favorable
Original Fina! Amount {Untavorable)
1,005,000 1,005,000 31,191 (973,809)
1,005,000 1,005,000 31,191 (973.809)
25,000 25,000 3,019 21,981
980,000 980,000 63,932 916,068
1,005,000 1,005,000 66,951 938,049
- - 3,019 3,019
. . 3,019 3,019
- - (32,741) (32.741)
41,673
8,932
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

HISTORICAL BUILDING 308
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues

Stale sources
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures

Capital outlay
General government

Total expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change n accounts receivable
Change 1n accounts payable

GAAP change in fund balance

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Actual Favorable
Orniginal Final Amounts  {Unlavorable)
10,000 65,795 10,000 (55,795)
10,000 65,795 10,000 (55,795)
13,000 69,054 69,054 -
13,000 69.054 69,054 -
3,000 3,239 3,259 -
3,000 3,239 3,259 -
- - (55,795) (55,793)
90,000
(36,482)
(2,277
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
1/4% - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS (309)

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Vanance
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual {(Unfavorable)
Revenues
Taxes 5 320,000 320,000 338,932 18,932
State Sources - - - -
[nterest 5,000 5,000 6,888 1,888
Total revenues 325,000 325,000 345 820 20,820
Expenditures
Current
General government 9,600 9,600 5,569 403!
Public safety - - - -
Public works - - - -
Culture and recreafion - - - -
Capital outlay - - - -
Total expenditures 9 600 9,600 5,569 4,031
Transfers in - 272,418 272,418 -
Transfers out {639,367) (440,745) {443,764) {3,019
Total transfers (639,367) (1068,327) (171,346) (3,019}
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
financing uses (323,967) § 147,073 168,905 21,832
Budgeted beginning cash 323,967
[y .
Change m accounts receivable 13,069
GAAP change n fund balance 5 181,974




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT - 310

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
State Grant $ - 310,831 316,831 -
Interest - 1,845 1,845
Local sources - 304,722 304,722 -
Taotal revenues - 623,398 623,398 -
Expenditures
Current
General government - - - -
Public safety - - - -
Public works - - - _
Culture and recreation - - - -
Capital outlay - 631,788 631,788 -
Total expenditures - 631,788 631,788 -
Transfers in - - - .
Transters out - - -
Tatal trapsfers - - - -
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other
financipg uses - (8,390) (8,390) -
Budgeted beginning cash -
$ -
Changes in accounts recervable {159,284)
Changes in accounts payable 150,590
GAAPF change in fund balance $ (17,084)

See Notes 1o Financial Statements.,
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAFP BUDGETARY BASIS)

WATER CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - 311

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State sources
Interest
Local sources

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General govermment
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total transfers

Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change in accounts receivable

GAAP change in fund balance

Variance
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
523,644 523,644 301,778 {221,360)
- - 1 1
200,000 200,000 - {200,000)
723,644 723,644 301,779 (421,865)
35,000 35,000 - 35,000
688,644 688,644 301,996 386,048
723,644 723,644 301,956 421,048
- (9,723) (9,723) -
- (9,723) (9,723) -
- 5 (9,723) {9,940) (217)
10,900
960
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND 217

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Taxes

State sowrces
Charges for services

Interest

Miscellaneous

Total revennes

Expenditures

General Govemment

Total expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other tinancing sources
Revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change in accounts receivable
Change in accounts payable

GAAP change in fund balance

Budgeted Amounls Variance
Actual Favorable
Original Final Almounls (Unfavoruble)
330,000 323,886 294,379 (29,507)
103,267 103,267 - (103,267)
2,000 3,750 3,730 -
5,000 1,283 1,283 -
440267 432 186 296 412 (132,774}
267,023 206,589 206.589 -
267,023 206,589 206,589 -
(189,867) (201,767) (201,767) -
(189,867) (201,767) (201,767) -
(16,623) 23,830 (108,944) (132,774)
16,623
86,839
(49,071}
(71,176)
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

GRT SWIM POOL/RECREATION CENTER FUND 302

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
State Gran(s
Federal Granis
Taxes
Interest

Total revenues
Expenditures
General Government
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Transfers m

Transfers out

Total other financing sources

Revenues and other financing sources over

{under) expenditures and other
financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Change in accounts receivable, net of adjustments

Change in accounts payable

GAAP clange i [und balance

Budgeled Amounts

Varianee

Aclual [Favorable
Original Final Amount (Unjavorabie}
$ 1.580,000 419,048 189,175 {229,873)
177,713 169,570 169,570 -
20,000 32,302 32,302 -
1, 777713 620,920 391,047 (229.873)
86,832 36,341 36.541 -
2,290,881 58,600 58,000 -
2,377,713 144,541 144,541 -
- 83,753 83,733 -
- {183.733) {183.753) -
- {(100,000) (100,000) -
(600,000) & 376.379 146,506 {229.873)
600,000
$ .
(7,967)
138,539
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STATE OF NEW MEXTICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

NMFA LOAN FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND 401

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeied Amounts Variance
Favorable
QOriginal Final Actual {Unfuavorable;
Revenues
Interest h - - 3,107 3,107
Total revenues - - 3,107 3.107
Expenditures
Debt service 34,837 34 837 34,837 -
Total expenditures 34,837 34,837 34,837 -
Transfers in---—- 8,937 8,937 8,937 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources 8,937 8,937 8,937 -
Revenues and other fimancing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
financing uses {25,900) § {25,900) (22,793) 3.107
Budgeted beginning cash 25,900
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

STREET IMPROVEMENT LOAN FUND 402

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues
Interest S 8,000 2,000 11,290 3,290
Total revenues 3,000 8,000 11,290 3,290
Expenditures
Debt service 106,483 106,483 106,483 -
Total expenditures 106,483 106,483 106,483 -
Transfers in 106,533 106,533 106,533 -
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources 106,533 106,533 106,533 -
Revenues and other financing sowrces over
{under) expendituwres and other
financing uses 8,050 § 8,050 {1,340 3,290
Budgeted beginning cash -
5 8,050
Amortization of loan acquisition costs (2,625)

GAAP change n fund balance 5 38,715
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

WELCOME CENTER LOAN FUND 403

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amoun(s Varlance
Faverable
Original Final Actual {Unfavarable)
Revenues
Interest 5 3,500 3,500 4.076 376
Total revenues 3,500 3,500 4,076 376
Expenditures
Debt service 51,200 51,200 51,198 2
Total expenditures 51,200 51,200 51,198 2
Transfers in 51,199 51,199 46,958 (4241
Transfers out - - - -
Total other financing sources 51,199 51,199 46,958 (4.241)
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
{inancing uses 3,499 § 3,499 {164) (3,663)
Budgeted beginning cash -
5 3,499




STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS DISTRICTS - 499

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Budgeted Amounts

Oniginal Final

Actual

Varlance
Favorable
{(Unlavorable)

Revenues 5 -

Total revenues B

Expenditures -

Total expenditures

Transfers n
Transfers out

Total other financing sources -

Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other
financing uses - 3

Budgeted beginning cash

Change in allowance for wicollectible accounts

GAAP change in fund balance
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
NVMIFA LOAN-LOADER DS FUND 404
Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Lerest

Total revenues

Expenditures
Debt service

Total expenditures
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources
Revenues angd other inancing sources over
(under ) expenditures and ofther

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Budgeted Amounts Variance
Favorable
Onginul Final Actual {Unlavorable)
300 300 516 216
300 300 516 216
21,314 21,314 21,314 -
21,314 21,314 21,314 -
21,128 21,126 17.604 {3.522)
21,126 21,126 17,604 {(3,522)
112§ 112 {3,194) {3.306)
112
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
WASTE WATER TREATMENT PLANT DEBT SERVICE - 405

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Debt service
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total transfers
Revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expenditures and other

financing uses

Budgeted beginning cash

Variance
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)

- - 5,001 3,061
177,433 177,433 - (177,433)
177,433 177,433 5,001 (172,372)
170,900 170,900 170,738 162
170,900 170,900 170,738 162

- - 234,599 234,59%

- - 234559 234,599

6,533 % 6,533 68,922 62,389
06,533



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
RECREATION CENTER DEBT SERVICE 406

Year Ended June 30, 2008

Revenues
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Cuirent
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total transfers
Revenues and other financing sources over

{(under) expenditures and other
financing uses

Varianuce
Budget Favorable
Original Final Actual {Unfavorable)
3,400 3,400 9,305 5,905
3,400 3,400 9,305 5,905
189,367 189,367 189,367 -
189,367 189,367 189,367 -
189,367 206,992 206,992 -
189,367 206,992 206,992 -
3,400 21,025 26,930 5,505

116



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

TRUST AND AGENCY FUND
June 30, 2008

Municipal Court. To account for fines and fees generated from the municipal court
systent.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AGENCY FUNDS

June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
June 30, 2007  Additions  Deductions June 30, 2008

ASSETS

Cash and temporary investments 5 10,754 62,330 (68,168) 4,916
LIABILITIES

Deposits held for others 5 10,754 62,330 (68,168) 4,916
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STATE OF NEW NMEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE O EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

CFDA Grantor
Federal Gramor-Program Title Number Idenmifying Number Expenditures
LS. Department ol Agriculture
Drect from USDA
Rural waste water treatinent prograim 10.760 85-6000163 5 157,546
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 157,546
LS. Department of Transportation
Federal Aviation Adninistrution Air Iimprovement 20.106 3-33-0033-010 339,830
3-35-0033-012 40,576
Recreational Trail Program 20.219 unknown 40,742
Tatal G.8. Department of Transportation 421,148
.S, Deparunent of Justice
Region IV Drug Task Foree 16738 05-JAG-PPA 02 Region [V FY0§ 2,407
Total U.S. Department of Justice 2,407
U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Passedd through New Mexico Departinent of Public Satety
Staie Domestic Preparedness Equipment Support 97.004 2004-GE-T6-00064 11,004
Homeland Security Grant Frogram 97.067 2005-GE-TS-00012 188.765
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 2006-GE-T7-0023 32,985
Subiotu]l Homeland Security cluster 282,754
Hazardous Material Traiing 97.unknown nknown §.000
EMPG Funds 97.042 2007-EM-E7-0033 17,516
EMPG Funds 97.042 2008-EMPG-Raton 235,326
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 333,796
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 5 914,897

*=

Non-cash support
NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

This schedule has been prepared on the acerual basis of accounting. [t includes activity only for the City of Raton.
The Raton Housing Authority submits o separate A-133 reporting package.
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MOSS-ADAMS ..

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

We have audited the governmental activities, the business-type activitics, the discretely
presented component units, each major fund, the general fund budgetary comparison, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Raton (City) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated November 29, 2008. We
have also audited the financial statements of each of the City’s nonmajor funds, the
budgetary comparisons, and the budgetary comparisons of the major enterprise funds,
presented as supplementary information in the accompanying combining and individual
fund statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, as listed in the table of
contents. We did not express an opinion related to the effects of capital assets of the City
on the entity-wide statements. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Intermmal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered agency’s Intermmal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s infernal
control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of tnternal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in internal
control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies.
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MOSS-ADAMS ui»

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control
deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity’s ability
to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood
that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential
will not be prevented or detected by the City’s internal control. For the City, we consider
the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
as items 02-1, 07-1, 08-1, 08-2, and 08-3 to be significant deficiencies in mtermal control
over financial reporting. For the component units, we consider the deficiencies described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Raton Public Service
items 02-1, 04-5, 08-1, 08-2, and 08-3, to be significant deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting.

A material weakness 1s a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies,
that results in more than a remote likelithood that a material misstatement of the financial
statements will not be prevented or detected by the agency’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited
purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify
all deficiencies 1n the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the significant deficiencies described
above, we consider items 02-1 (City) and 07-1 (City) and 04-5 (RPS) to be material
weaknesses.
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MOSS-ADAMS 11»

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 02-1 and 08-4 for the City, and for the
component units Raton Public Service as item 04-5.

The City’s and component unit’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit
the City’s and component unit’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opiaion on
them.

This report 1s intended solely for the information and use of the management, the City
Commussioners, the Office of the State Auditor, the New Mexico State Legislature, the
New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration, and federal awarding agencies
and pass-through entities and ts not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

ﬁ{m Ao L/7

Albuguerque, New Mexico
November 29, 2008
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MOSS-ADAMS v

Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
M. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of State of New Mexico City of Raton (City) with the
types of compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
{(OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2008. The City’s major federal programs are
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of
the City’s management. QOur responsibility 1s to express an opinion on the City’s
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the Umited States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contatned in Government Auditing Standards, 1ssued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audit of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence about the City’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinton. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.
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MOSS-ADAMS 1»

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

In our opinion the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to
above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30,
2008.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of State of New Mexico, City of Rafon, 1s responsible for establishing
and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. In planning and
performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal control over compliance with
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design
or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is
a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program
that is more than inconsequential wiil not be prevented or detected by the entity's intemal
control.

A material weakness 1s a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies,
that results in more than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the
entity's internal control.

Qur consideration of internal contrel over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all
deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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MOSS ﬂDﬁkN[ S Lip

CERTIFIED FURLIC ACCOURTANT HURTHESS COMSULTRNTS

State of New Mexico
City of Raton
and
Mr. Hector H. Balderas,
New Mexico State Auditor

This report 1s intended solely for the information and use of the City’s management, the
New Mexico State Auditor, the New Mexico State Legislature, the New Mexico
Department of Finance and Administration, and federal awarding agencies and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specific parties.

/%m W Lo/

Albuquerque, New Mexico
November 29, 2008
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

A, SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditors' report issued Qualified
Internal control over finaticial reporting:

+ Matenial weakness(es) identified? x_ Yes No

«  Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be material weakness(es)? X Yes None Reported

Non-compliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X Na
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

« Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X MNo

«  Sigmficant deficiency(ies) identified that are
not considered to be materal weakness(es) Yes x__ None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
mMajor Programs: Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-133? Yes X No

Identification of Major Program

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.106 Anrport Improvement Program
10.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural Communities

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A
and type B programs $ 300,000

Auditeg qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

B-1.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON

02-1 City Capital Assets, Material Weakness

CONDITION

The City’s does not report and depreciate general infrastructure assets in their financial
statements. In addition, an inventory of capital assets was not performed during FYO0S.
The inventory listing is not maintained. Additions and disposals are not recorded.

CRITERIA

GASB 34 requires governments to report general infrastructure assets in the Statement of
Net Assets. State law requires an annual inventory of capital assets be performed. Section
12-6-10, NMSA 1978, requires each agency to conduct an annual physical inventory of
movable chattels and equipment on the inventory list at the end of each fiscal year.

CAUSE
The City has not had the time and resources to update their fixed assets records.
EFFECT

Lack of an annual inventory and incomplete supporting documentation could lead to
theft, misuse or unauthorized disposal without detection. Material misstatements of
capital assets may result. A restatement of capital assets did occur in 2007,

RECOMMENDATION

The City should maintain and update an accurate histing of all capital assets, including
infrastructure, owned by the City and obtain services of an appraisal company to conduct
an inventory of their infrastructure and produce an accurate listing. In addition, detail on
current year activity shouid be maintained.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The City of Raton will obtain the services of an engineering firm to conduct an inventory
of the general infrastructure assets as required by GASB 34. The City will also make
every effort this year to conduct a physical inventory of all capital assets which will
imclude an accurate report of all additions and deletions.

127



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

B-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

07-1 City Inability to Prepare GAAP-based Financial Statements, Material
Weakness

CONDITION

The City and Raton Water Works did not prepare a trial balance i accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). There were 22 journal entries
proposed to convert the City’s trial balance to the modified accrual basis of accounting.
The Raton Water Works trial balance alse required adjustments (o convert to the full
accrual basis of accounting, which is GAAP for enterprise funds. The June 30, 2007
financial statements had to be restated for 3 funds which had material ervors.

CRITERIA

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Cedification of Governmental Accounting
and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB), Section 1100 requires governments to prepare
financial statements on the modified accrual basis for governmental type funds and full
accrual basis for enterprise type funds.

CAUSE

The City and Water Works keep their books on the cash basis and have not taken the
necessary steps to convert them to the modified accrual basis.

EFFECT

The City and Water Works may not have the ability to prevent and detect material
misstatements in their financial statements.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the City and Water Works convert their trial balance to the apphcable
generally accepted basis prior to the audit.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The City of Raton has consulted with the auditors in order to gain a better understanding
of this requirement. The City of Raton and Raton Water Works will provide the auditors
with the necessary accrual entries for FY09 prior to the audit in order to convert the triaj
balances to the modified accrual basis for governmental fund types and full accrual basis
for the enterprise fund which will insure proper compliance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30,2008

B-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-1 City Controls over Cash Receipts
CONDITION

During our review of the cash receipts process, we noted certain control deficiencies. The
City accepts cash receipts after the batch has been closed for the day. Curmency and
checks that are waiting to be deposited are locked in a safe inside the vault overnight.
Because the keys to the safe are kept inside the vault, anyone with access to the vault also
has access to the safe. In addition, employees who receive cash payments have the ability
to void transactions without additional oversight or approval.

CRITERIA

In order to ensure that all cash receipts accepted are correctly applied and are timely
deposited into the City’s bank account, payments received in currency or check are
entered into the accounting system, a computer-generated receipt 1s 1ssued, and the bank
deposit slip is prepared using the cash receipt register. Adequate segregation of duties
requires that the ability to authorize, execute, and reconcile transactions lies with three
separate individuals. Adequate controls over cash require that cash be properly
safeguarded until deposited. Ideally, cash and checks should be deposited m the City’s
bank account on the same day they are received. If the same employee can both void a
transaction and approve the voiding of a transaction, there is the risk that fraud will
oceus.

CAUSE

The City creates one batch per day of the cash receipts accepted at the City Clerk’s
office. When a customer pays at the office after the batch has been closed, the cash
receipt 1s not entered inte the daily batch, so the customer is given a handwritten receipt.
Payments by cash or check are accepted throughout the business day at the City Clerk’s
office. At the end of the day, the payments are aggregated into one batch. From this batch
the bank deposit slip is completed and the payments arc deposited in the City’s bank the
following day. Typically, a transaction will be voided if the amount or account was
entered in error. In these instances, the employee accepting the cash payment can void
and re-enter the transaction without the approval or oversight of another employee. At
times, there may only be one employee in the office, so requiring additional approval
may be difficult.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

B-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-1 City Controls over Cash Receipts (continued)
EFFECT

A cash receipt accepted without a tumely record in the accounting system, and therefore
without the issuance of computer-generated receipt, carries a risk that the cash may be
mishandled, either through error or fraud. Because the payment is not entered into the
accounting system, its receipt 1s not recorded, and the amount may not be deposited.
Without additional controls, checks and cash awaiting deposit overnight in the vault
could be susceptible to theft. The lack of detective controls, and the fact that more than
one person has both access to the vault and access to the safe, makes it difficult, if not
impossible, to detect the person responsible. Because an employee has the ability to void
a cash payment transaction, there 1s the risk that cash receipts may not be recorded or
deposited, and that such payments can be converted to personal use.

RECOMMENDATION:

We recommend the City consider not accepting cash receipts after they've closed their
batch for the day. Because of risk associated with handwritten receipts and the lack of
adequate controls, eluninating handwritten receipts altogether 1s the best option. This
may require that the batch be closed later, after customers are ne longer admitted; it may
require that customers be mformed that payments will no longer be accepted after a given
time, even if the office is still open; or, it may require that the City prepare multiple
batches in a single day. As a preventative control, cash and checks received as payment
could be deposited on the same day received, perhaps at the bank’s night deposit drop
box. As a detective confrol, and a deterrent to theft, the cash and checks received and
stored n the vault could by counted by two employees upon both delivery into and
removal from the vault. The process of voiding transactions would benefit from another
level of control, either by requiring a manager to void a transaction, or by requiring two
employees to sign off on a voided receipt. The daily batch register should be reviewed for
evidence of improperly voided sales to avoid loss due to a register disbursement fraud.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The City of Raton concurs with the auditor recommendation and will be changing some
of its internal controt procedures to msure the safeguarding of cash receipts. The City of
Raton will discuss the procedure for doing night deposits with the bank and will require 2
signatures on all voided transactions. The City of Raton no longer 1ssues hand receipts
after the batch has been closed but will keep a receipt book on hand 1 the event that the
system 1s down for any reason. Staff 1s also required fo write the system generated
receipt number on the copy of the manual receipt which will be monitored by the City
Clerk regularly.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

B-1.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-2 City Segregation of Duties Over Disbursements
CONDITION:

One mdividual has the ability to both prepare (execute) and sign (authorize) checks. This
1s an inadequate segregation of duties.

CRITERIA:

The ability to execute, authorize, and reconcile transactions should lie with three separate
mdividuals to ensure that transactions are not mishandled due to error or fraud. For the
instance of payroll checks, this means that one mdividual should prepare the checks,
another individual should sign the checks, and a third individual should reconcile the
bank account,

CAUSE:

The systemn used to generate payroll checks, Incode, has the ability to print authorized
signatures directly on the check with the entry of an additional password. The three
individuals that have the capability to prepare checks within Incode (Michael Anne
Lannon, Geneva Trujillo, and Cyndi Parker) also have the ability to sign the checks.
Although the City Clerk does approve and sign off on the check register, there is no
control in place that would prevent the generation of a separate check run and the
destruction of that separate check register.

EFFECT:
One person can both prepare and sign a fraudulent check, perhaps written to themselves
or an accomplice. Although the City Clerk reconciles the bank statement, she wouldn’t

necessarily notice a fraudulent check as long as it was recorded in Incode, and the bank
reconciliations are not always performed on a timely basis.
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STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2008

B-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-2 City Segregation of Duties Over Disbursements (continued)
RECOMMENDATION:

The signature printing function (Secure Signature) should require two distinct passwords
instead of just one. (Per the City Clerk, the system does have this capability.) Each
individual in the accounting department that prepares checks should only have access to
one of the passwords (i.e., no one person should know both passwords). In addition, for
the instances when there is only one accounting employee at the office, a few individuals
outside the accounting department could have access to one password as well. This would
ensure that every check prepared and signed would have two individuals overseeing the
transaction.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The City of Raton concurs with the auditor recommendation and will have Incode
program the system so that 2 passwords are required when printing signatures on checks.



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CITY OF RATON

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2008

B-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-3 City Fraud Related to Refundable Deposits
CONDITION

In February 2008, the City discovered that fraud had allegedly been perpetrated in the
area of cash receipts by an employee who has since resigned. The employee was able to
allegedly perpetrate the fraud because they were received payments from customers in
the form of currency and checks that were not deposited tn the bank but kept in a locked
safe until the deposits were refunded and because timely reconciliation of the daily
deposits were not completed. While the situation was ultimately detected when the
deposits were reconciled to the general ledger, the fraud would have been prevented
altogether if the procedure would have been completed timely. The amount of missing
deposits totaled $5,568.

CRITERIA

Adequate controls over cash require that cash deposits should be reconciled in a timely
manner. The deposits are fully refundable to the customer, meaning that, although the
cash has been recelved, the money has not been eamed by the City and must be returned.
Rental deposits account should be classified as a hability (1.e. uneamed revenue), not a
revenue account,

CAUSE

The City has recently begun recording refundable deposits. Before January, all
refundable deposits were issued a handwritten receipt and the cash received was kept in
the vault and not deposited. Due to the risk associated with unrecorded cash kept on
hand, and the resulting fraudulent activity, the City Clerk nstituted a policy that alt
refundable deposits must be recorded and deposited. The employee was able to perpetrate
the fraud because they were received payments from customers in the form of cwrrency
and checks that were not deposited in the bank but kept in a locked safe until the deposits
were refunded and because timely reconcihation of the daily deposits were not
completed.
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B-1. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-3 City Fraud Related to Refundable Deposits (continued)
EFFECT

Without additional controls or tumely reconciliation, checks and cash deposits could be
susceptible to theft and fraud was not detected until the reconciliation was completed.
Liabilities are understated by the amount of any outstanding refundable deposits, and
revenue 1s overstaied by the same amount.

RECOMMENDATION

As a preventive control, cash and checks received as payment should be deposited on the
same day received and reconciled to the general ledger timely. This will be a deterrent to
theft, the cash and checks received will be verified and reconciled to the general ledger.
The rental deposits account should be classified as a liability, rather than a revenue,
account.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The City of Raton will insure that all cash and checks received are deposited the same
day and that copies of all deposit slips and checks are made prior to going to the bank.
The validated bank deposit slip 1s also checked again after the deposit is made to make
sure it matches the daily report. All accounts will be reconciled to the general ledger
monthly upon receipt of the bank statements. The line 1item for refundable deposits will
also be changed to a liability account.
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B-1. TINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-4 City Budget Overages

CONDITION

During our analysis of the budget for the year ended June 30, 2008, we noted the
following budget overages for the City:

Budgetary
Level Overage Budget
Special Revenue Funds
Fire Grants Fund $ 1,550 347,422
Police Grants Fund $ 22,450 144,566

CRITERIA

New Mexico State Statute 6-6-6 NMSA 1978 requires that local government spending
does not exceed budgeted amounts, unless approved budget adjustments are made.

EFFECT

The City Commission did not have the opportunity to approve these additional
expenditures.

CAUSE
Year-end adjustments of budgeted and actual expenditures were not completed.
RECOMMENDATION

Management should update polices and procedures that specifically include reviews that
compare actual to budgeted expenditures.
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B-1. TFINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS - CITY OF RATON
(CONTINUED)

08-4 City Budget Overages (continued)
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The intent of the City Commission was to approve all over budget items at year end. An
adjustment was posted to the Fire Grants Fund incorrectly thus causing the fund to
inadvertently be over budget. Information needed to process the E911 Police Grant
adjustment was not received from DFA until September, after the final budget adjustment
was already approved. The City Clerk will contact DFA next year prior to submission of
the final budget adjustment and will also double check all budget adjustment requests for
eirors prior to submission to DFA.
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B-2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
02-01 RPS  Policies and Procedures Manual

CONDITION

There are no written policies and procedures for accounting and purchasing.
CRITERIA

Policies and procedures should be maintained to ensure proper accounting and ensure that
imternal control structure ts adequate and in operation.

CAUSE

Due to the size of RPS and the fact that the majority of transaciions are routine,
management has not determined it cost effective to develop formal polices and
procedures for accounting,

EFFECT

Without policies and procedures, there may be inconsistencies on how items are
processed and may lead to improper accounting method utilization.

RECOMMENDATION
Policy and procedure manuals should be written and adopted by the Board.
MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RPS implemented a purchasing policy on July 24, 2002. This policy will be reviewed
and updated as necessary. RPS 1s working to implement an accounting policy.
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B-2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
(CONTINUED)

04-05 RPS  Capital Assets - Material Weakness
CONDITION

During our testwork of capital assets, the following was noted:

« A physical inventory was completed at or near year-end by an outside firm.
However, the inventory taken by the firm did not agree to amounts posted in the
general ledger for fixed assets. Additionally, there are unresolved errors m the
detail listing from the physical inventory.

+ Movable assets, such as computers, are not tagged with unique identifying
numbers.

+ RPS does not have pohicies and procedures related to the disposition of fixed
assels.

CRITERIA

Sound accounting requirements require a detailed asset listing, which should be in
agreement with the general ledger. In addition, RPS is not in compliance with 1 NMAC
1.2.1, Accounting and Control of Fixed Assets since the assets are not tagged.

CAUSE

Adequate policies and procedures are not in place to help monitor this situation.

EFFECT

RPS is not in compliance with 1 NMAC 1.2.1.

RECOMMENDATION

Develop and 1implement policies and procedures that incorporate tagging all assets and
calls for a complete physical inventory at or near year-end and proper disposal of assets.

Reconcile all capital assets to the general ledger. Management should consider grouping
capital assets within their system as they are presented in the financial statements.
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B-2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
(CONTINUED)

04-05 RPS  Capital Assets - Material Weakness (continued)

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RPS has agreed to work with the City of Raton to reconcile and update the asset records

for both organizations, meluding the tagging of assets. RPS has begun work on the

policies and procedures governing the maintenance of asset records, including but not
limited to additions, inventory control and disposition of assets.
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B-2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
(CONTINUED)

08-1 RPS Expensing of Inventory Used in Operations
CONDITION

The unadjusted inventory baiance reflected on the general ledger did not agree to the total
balance on the detailed schedule at year end.

CRITERIA

Inventory items consumed in the course of operations should be expensed according to
the first-in first-out method 1n accordance with RPS” accounting policies.

CAUSE

The ending inventory balance reflected on the detalled listing was appropriately
calculated using the first-in first-out method while inventory consumed during the year
was Incorrectly expensed at average cost.

EFFECT

The general ledger ending inventory balance was understated and related operating
expenses were overstated.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend establishing procedures to ensure that inventory items used during the
year 1s expensed using the first-in-out method.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

The inventory tracking sofiware has been adjusted to expense items on a first-in first-out
basis.
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B-2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
(CONTINUED)

08-2 RPS Aged Accounts Receivable Finding

CONDITION

There was an immatenal discrepancy between the accounts receivable balance reflected
on the aged hsting and the general ledger accounts receivable balance.

CRITERIA

The fotal accounts balance per the aged accounts receivable listing should agree to the
general ledger balance af year end.

CAUSE

Receivables that have been written-off are not being removed from the aged accounts
recelvable listing.

EFFECT

The accounts receivable balance reflected on the aged listing was overstated and not
representative of the actual account receivable balance on the general ledger at year end.

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend establishing procedures to ensure that the accounts receivable balance on
the aged listing agrees to the general ledger balance at year end.

MANAGEMENT RESPONSE

RPS will begin running a process (o write off aged accounts and remove them from the
accounts receivable balance.
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B-2. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
{(CONTINUED)

08-3 RPS IT Finding
CONDITION

During our testing of intemal controls relating to information technology controls we
noted the following opportunities for the County to improve controls and overall system
security:

¢ RPS does not have a change management program in place for implementing
software application progranuming or other technology changes. It was noted
that the A/R system was modified by an external consultant. Modified
applications bear an increased risk of lost or damaged data, or the introduction of
processing erTors.

¢ Currently, Raton Public Service does not have a password poticy m place. Even
access to non-critical systems can be a risk for RPS.

e Securlty access lias not been tested over the past year.

CRITERIA

There should be proper safeguards and controls over information technology to ensure
proper financial reporting and safeguarding of County information.

EFFECT

The safeguarding of important and confidential information can be compromised. Also,
once weak passwords are exploited, a determined hacker can use other systems within the
network to launch attacks or intrusion attempts against critical systems.

CAUSE
There are no established policies and procedures for the application of implementing new

software and passwords. Additionally, there has not been any testing by an outside
security expert.
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B-2.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
(CONTINUED)

08-3 RPS IT Finding (continued)

RECOMMENDATION

We recommend the County implement the foliowing:

e A process should be developed to document and manage all technology changes
at RPS, mcluding those performed by extemal consultants. Change management
should at a minimum document the review and approval of the proposed change,
developing and testing changes in a non-production environment, rollbaclk
procedures, and approval fo migrate the change to production. Development
documentation, performed by an external consultant, shouid be retained in-house
by RPS. Such proactive measures will help ensure the expected performance of
the system, and help anticipate any unforeseen problems.

» A password policy should be uniform across the organization regardless of the
employee’s status or role. Everyone should be required to adhere to a regular
schedule of changing their passwords for access to the network. This policy
should be clearly defined with the following parameters: requiring usesrs to change
their passwords every 90 days, maintaining password uniqueness, and having at
least § alphanumeric characters in their password. In addition, the system shouid
lock out an account after three failed login attempts.

o RPS should establish policies and procedures to ensure that a security assessment
wil] be conducted annually and that penetration testing be added to the quarterly
maintenance routines.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSE

RPS will work with the City and its consultants to develop and implement a more
thorough network security policy.
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B-3. TFINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS-RATON HOUSING AUTHORITY
None.
C. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

None.
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City of Raton

02-1  Fixed Assets, material weakness

04-1  Travel & Per Diem

04-2  Information Systemns

06-1 Mantaining control numbers for checks — RWW
07-1  Inability to prepare GAAP-based financial statements
07-2  Cash disbursements - RWW

07-3  Cash — bank collateralization

07-4  Inventory of supplies - RWW

Raton Public Service Co.

02-1 Policy and Procedures Manual — RPS
04-5  Capital Assets

06-1  Inventory Tracking System

07-1 Reconciliation of cash accounts

Raton Housing Authority

None

145

Repeated and Updated
Resolved
Resolved
Resolved
Repeated and Updated
Resolved
Resolved
Resolved

Repeated and Updated
Repeated and Updated
Resolved
Resolved



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CITY OF RATON

EXIT CONFERENCE
Year Ended June 30, 2008

We discussed the contents of this report during the exit conference heid on November 25,
2008. The exit conference was attended by the following individuals:

CITY OF RATON
Joe F. Apache, Mayor
Michael Anne Lannon, City Clerk/Treasurer
Dan Campbell, Raton Water Works Manager
Bonnie Cunico, Raton Water Works Financial Officer

Moss Adams LLP
James Hartogensis, CPA Senior Manager

RATON PUBLIC SERVICE
An exit conference was held on November 25, 2008. Attending were the following:

Representing RPS:
Kathy McQueary Vice President of the Board
Glenn Fisher General Manager
Sandy Chavez Office Manager

Representing Moss Adams LLP:
James Hartogensis, CPA Senior Manager
RATON HOUSING AUTHORITY
An exit conference was held on November 25, 2008 and attended by:
Raton Housing Authority
Rebert Stoller, Chairperson
Terry Baca, Executive Director
Moss Adams LLP
James Hartogensis, CPA Senior Manager

The financial statements were prepared with the assistance of Moss Adams LLP.

146





